Collective Bargaining Agreement between Three Rivers/Josephine County School District and Oregon School Employees Association Chapter 22

July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE2
ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION
ARTICLE 2 DUES DEDUCTION
ARTICLE 3 NO DISCRIMINATION
ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
ARTICLE 5 NO STRIKE-NO LOCK OUT10
ARTICLE 6 UNION RIGHTS12
ARTICLE 7 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE14
ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE18
ARTICLE 9 PERSONNEL RECORDS22
ARTICLE 10 WORK TIME22
ARTICLE 11 SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALL27
ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE PROBATION32
ARTICLE 13 VACANCIES32
ARTICLE 14 PAID VACATION34
ARTICLE 15 PAID HOLIDAYS35
ARTICLE 16 LEAVES OF ABSENCE37
ARTICLE 17 BENEFITS44
ARTICLE 18 PAY PLAN48

ARTICLE 19 MISCELLANEOUS	52
ARTICLE 20 HEALTH AND SAFETY	53
ARTICLE 21 SAVINGS CLAUSE	
ARTICLE 22 STANDING COMMITTEES	
ARTICLE 23 RETIRE/REHIRE EMPLOYEES	
ARTICLE 24 TERM OF AGREEMENT	
EXECUTION OF SIGNATURES	
APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE	
APPENDIX B – EXTRA DUTY SALARY SCHEDULE	
APPENDIX C RECLASSIFICATION	/1

PREAMBLE

- A. This Agreement is entered into between the Board of Education on behalf of the Three Rivers/Josephine County School District, herein referred to as the "Board" or "District," and Chapter 22 of the Oregon School Employees Association, herein referred to as the "Union."
- B. The intent of this Agreement is to set forth and record herein the basic and full agreement between the parties on those matters pertaining to wages, hours, and conditions of employment for classified personnel included in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

- A. The District recognizes Chapter 22 of the Oregon School Employees Association, an affiliate of Oregon School Employees Association (OSEA), as the exclusive bargaining representative for all regular full-time and regular part-time classified employees employed by the District in the job classifications with rates of pay set forth in Appendix A. Further, it is recognized that all managerial, academically licensed employees, supervisors, confidential employees, substitutes, and/or temporary employees are specifically excluded from the bargaining unit.
- B. Definitions of excluded employees:
 - Managerial employee means an employee of the District who possesses authority to formulate and carry out management decisions or who represents management's interest by taking or effectively recommending discretionary actions that control or implement employer policy, and who has discretion in the performance of these management responsibilities beyond the routine discharge of duties.
 - Academically licensed employees are employees such as teachers or other professional employees who must maintain licensure through the TSPC or other professional organization as a condition of continued employment.
 - 3. Supervisor means any individual employee having authority in the interest of the employer to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward or discipline other employees, or responsibly to direct them, or to adjust their grievances, or effectively to recommend such action, if in connection therewith, the exercise of such authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature but requires the use of independent judgment.
 - 4. Confidential employees are those employees whose job duties require that they work directly with administrators and/or school board members in areas related to the collective bargaining process and would be in attendance at such times when meetings occur to assist the management of the District in preparation for collective bargaining.
 - 5. Substitutes are employees who have no regular schedule of hours or reasonable expectation of any number of hours or days to be worked during any given year. Substitutes may be used to replace a bargaining unit employee on a short-term basis when that bargaining unit employee is unable to work.
 - 6. Temporary employees are those employees hired to perform a specific job of short duration not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) calendar days.

ARTICLE 2 DUES DEDUCTION

The District agrees to deduct an amount equal to the dues of the Union from the monthly pay of each OSEA member in the bargaining unit. Such dues shall be transmitted to the Union within thirty (30) days. Authorization shall be in writing by each employee on the form provided by the Association. Upon request by TRSD, when a question arises about membership, the Association shall provide proof of dues deduction authorization by said employee. Employee questions about membership or changing membership shall be directed to the Association.

If the District tenders defense of any claim or suit brought against the District as a result of the provisions of this article, the Association agrees to defend the District and hold the District harmless against any orders or judgements that result from such claim or suit.

The Association shall have the exclusive right to members of the bargaining unit to have payroll deductions of Association dues and fees. This right shall not be granted to any competing employee organization.

ARTICLE 3 NO DISCRIMINATION

Employees shall not be discriminated against by the Board or the Association because of membership in any protected class under state and federal law including, but not limited to disability, age, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital or domestic partnership status, political affiliation or involvement, national origin, membership or non-membership in the Association or because of their exercise or other rights under this Agreement. All references to employees in this Agreement designate both sexes. This Article is not subject to the provisions of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The Board, hereby retains and reserves unto itself or its designated administrative officers all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and invested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Oregon, and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoring, the right:
 - 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees;
 - 2. To hire all employees, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion or layoff; and to promote and transfer any such employee;
 - 3. To determine work schedules and hours or work, and the duties, responsibilities and assignments of employees with respect thereto, and the terms and conditions of employment;
 - 4. To determine standards of performance and specific and general responsibilities, and performance objectives as reflected in the District job descriptions which will be revised and updated, as needed, by a committee of three (3) Union representatives, and (3) District representatives, and to evaluate each individual employee's compliance, achievement, and fulfillment of such;
 - 5. To determine location of the schools and other facilities of the school district, including the right to establish new facilities and to relocate or close other facilities; and the determination of the layout and the equipment to be used and the right to plan, direct and control school activities;
 - 6. To relieve employees from duty according to provisions of State Law and this Agreement;
 - 7. The Board reserves the right to create, combine or eliminate any bargaining unit positions as in its judgment is deemed necessary. The Board shall notify the Union of any bargaining unit positions which it plans to create and combine prior to the implementation of said plan and to negotiate the rate of pay for the bargaining positions which it plans to eliminate.
- B. The District agrees that for the life of this Agreement it shall not contract out any bargaining unit work except to the extent that specialized contractors may be utilized to perform work requiring state or federal licensure for which no bargaining unit employee possesses, or in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 above.

- C. The foregoing enumerations of the functions of the Board shall not be considered to exclude other functions of the Board not specifically set forth; the Board retaining all functions and rights to act.
- D. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Board, and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specifics and expressed terms of hereof are in conformance with the constitution and laws of the State of Oregon and of the United States.

ARTICLE 5 NO STRIKE-NO LOCK OUT

- A. During the life of this Agreement the Union, its officers, agents and any of the employees covered by this Agreement will not engage in any unlawful primary picket line against the District or its facilities, or participate in any strike, work stoppage, slow-downs, mass resignations, willful absence from one's position, the stoppage of work or restrictions from work, or the abstinence in whole or in part of the full, faithful and proper performance of the duties of employment. The Union, its officers, agents and any of the employees covered by this Agreement shall not be prohibited from showing union solidarity by displaying items on their person or on bulletin boards designated for union use that are not derogatory to the District. Such displays shall not disrupt District operations, nor shall students and/or parents be enlisted to participate in such activities.
- B. In the event that any employee or employees in the bargaining unit violate paragraph "A" above, the District shall serve notice to the Union and the employee or employees of the violation. The Union, upon notification, shall immediately notify any and all such employees individually, to cease and desist from such action, shall order each employee immediately to return to that employee's regular duties, and promptly notify the District the employees have been so ordered. Employees not returning promptly to work after notice may be discharged or otherwise disciplined.
- C. The District agrees that the employees within the bargaining unit shall not be locked out from performing their duties within the District during the life of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 UNION RIGHTS

A. **INFORMATION:** Upon request, the District agrees to furnish to the Union available information necessary for its functioning as the exclusive bargaining representative. The Union shall pay the reasonable cost of any necessary reproduction.

******In addition, the District shall provide to the Chapter President and OSEA's Director of Fiscal Operations at classified@osea.org with and editable digital spreadsheet containing the following information for each employee that provides the information in the bargaining unit:

- 1. The employee's name, date of birth, last 4 of Social Security number and date of hire:
- Contact information (if available in District files) including: cell, home, work telephone numbers, personal and work email addresses, and home or personal mailing address;
- 3. Employment information including employee's job title, hourly pay rate, daily hours worked, step on the salary schedule, annual salary and worksite location.

The District shall provide the information within ten (10) calendar days from the date of hire for newly hired employees and every one hundred twenty (120) calendar days for the employee in the bargaining unit who are not newly hired.

Oregon House Bill 2016 requires that a school district transmit in digital format specific information regarding its employees to the public employee's exclusive representative. Data transmitted by the district via email may be subject to security breaches. When this requested data leaves district servers, the district has no responsibility to protect the data from third-party access. Upon submission of the data, it is the responsibility of the exclusive representative to determine the usage and any dissemination of the data to the other parties.

- B. **BULLETIN BOARD SPACE:** Upon request, the District agrees to provide the Union with reasonable space on existing bulletin boards in each school building or other District buildings.
- C. MAIL FACILITIES AND MAILBOXES: The Union is permitted reasonable use of the District's interschool mail facilities and school mailboxes. District practice as to size of transported material shall apply to Union materials.
- D. **EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS:** The rights of the Union as set forth in this Agreement shall be

granted only to the Union as the exclusive representative of classified employees and to no other classified employee organizations.

E. **USE OF SCHOOL EQUIPMENT:** The Union shall have the right to use school equipment as approved and designated by the building principal or supervisor, at reasonable times, when such equipment is not otherwise in use and provided said equipment is not reserved for specific school purposes. The Union shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use, and for any repairs necessitated as a result thereof.

If bargaining unit members use the District computers or email systems for Union business, they are to adhere to the District's acceptable use policy. In addition, the Union indemnifies the District against any legal action resulting from the Union's use, such as actions for libel, slander, etc.

- F. The Union and the District agree to split the cost of providing sufficient copies of this Agreement to classified employees across the District, plus fifty (50) copies for the District. The District will publish the copies.
- G. Employees who work during Union meetings may take time off to attend those meetings provided it does not interfere with school activities, and provided they make up the time later.
- H. A representative of the Union shall have the opportunity to make brief announcements to classified employees at any time they are assembled by the District. During group orientation events or activities at the beginning of the academic year, OSEA shall be permitted to set up a table to meet directly with employees before, after, and during breaks. No employees shall suffer a loss in compensation or benefits as a result of participating in or attending these OSEA presentations.

I. RELEASE TIME FOR DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Designated Representatives shall be allowed release time to attend outside trainings, activities or to serve as a full-time representative of OSEA without loss of District compensation and benefits (insurance and retirement). The Designated Representative shall use accrued leave time for short-term attendance at such events or OSEA shall reimburse the District for any compensation and benefits (insurance/retirement).

When a Designated Representative on release time discontinues or ends the release time for any reason, the employee shall be returned to their prior position or, if not feasible, to a substantially similar position without loss of seniority, rank, classification or retirement credit. The Designated Representative shall request release time through the established District leave process.

For the purpose of this Article, "designated representatives" shall include chapter

executive board officers, building representatives, union stewards, and their designees. A non-employee OSEA Field Representative shall be permitted to access to the District's facilities for the purpose of engaging in the activities described in this Article on the same terms and conditions as designated representatives.

Designated representative(s) shall follow regular procedures for notifying their supervisor in advance for any leave time away from work, as specified above, and marking such absences as "union leave" on their timesheets.

In any instance where the District has been notified in advance that a designated representative(s) will attend and has scheduled a meeting or event such that the designated representative(s) is/are absent from work, the District will provide paid release time for the designated representative(s) of the Association for a total of up to 15 work days (or equivalent total of half-days) annually for all purposes, including those listed above, where the District is not responsible for scheduling the meeting or event during the designated representative(s) work hours.

- J. All District required training will be compensated in accordance with their current hourly wage, mileage, and expenses per the terms of this collective bargaining agreement and requirements of state and federal law.
- K. NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION: The District shall provide the designated Union with no less than thirty (30) minutes, and up to one hundred twenty (120) minutes to meet with new employees within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of hire to introduce the new employee to the Union and collective bargaining agreement. This meeting shall be on a regular work time without loss of compensation or benefits.

In the event newly hired staff do not attend new employee orientation, OSEA shall be allowed to meet with newly hired classified employees during regular work hours at the regular work locations for a period of one-half (1/2) hour up to one hundred twenty minutes (120) at other times during the year for orientation of newly hired classified. No employees shall suffer a loss in compensation or benefits as a result of participating in or attending OSEA presentations.

ARTICLE 7 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

The District may suspend, demote, terminate, or otherwise discipline post-probationary employees for just cause. The parties agree that the general principals of progressive discipline are to be used when considering disciplinary action.

- A. WRITTEN NOTICE TO APPEAR: Whenever any classified employee is required to appear before the Superintendent or designee concerning any matter which would be made a matter of record and could adversely affect the continuation of the employee in their office, position or employment, or the wages or any increments pertaining thereto, then they shall be given prior written notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have a representative of the Union or legal counsel present to advise them and represent them during such meeting or interview. Prior to the imposition of any discipline, the Union shall have full rights to complete discovery of evidence and any information, witness names and statements used by the District as the basis for discipline.
- B. **PERFORMANCE PLAN:** For employees that have completed their probationary period, in the event of unsatisfactory performance, the following procedure will be followed:

If the concern is related to a lack of knowledge or skill, the administrator/supervisor will work with the employee to be given the opportunity to gain the knowledge/skill before placing the employee on a performance plan.

In the event of unsatisfactory performance, the following procedure will be followed:

The supervisor shall conduct a conference with the employee and the Union representative. The employee will be informed of:

- 1. The deficiencies noted in their performance.
- 2. Suggestions on how the employee can improve.
- 3. The specified number of days given to correct the deficiencies.
- 4. Possible consequences for failure to improve the deficiencies.
- 5. If the employee is placed on a formal Plan of Improvement, it shall be for no less than four (4) consecutive workweeks and shall specify assistance the District will offer and set forth a schedule of meeting dates to evaluate progress and address any further needs for assistance. Extensions to the Plan of Improvement may be mutually agreed to by the parties. Failure to successfully complete a plan of improvement may lead to adverse personnel action including involuntary transfer, assignment to a different position, or termination

for non-conduct related performance.

- C. **MISCONDUCT**: Non-probationary bargaining unit employees shall not be disciplined or discharged without just cause. The following are examples of (but not limited to) causes for discipline and/or discharge:
 - 1. Failure to fulfill their responsibility as an employee.
 - 2. Improper contact with a student.
 - 3. Conduct which is a hindrance to the effective performance of District functions.
 - 4. Theft.
 - 5. Use of or being under the influence of alcohol or controlled substances.
 - Insubordination.
 - 7. Conviction of a crime including distribution, sale or possession of alcohol or illegal drugs, being under the influence of same, or illegal conduct with relation to minors.
 - 8. Is absent from work for three (3) consecutive working days without notification to the District except in extraordinary situations;
 - 9. Is laid off and fails to report to work within ten (10) days after receiving written notice of recall unless reasonable excuse is provided to the District;
 - 10. Fails to report to work at the termination of a leave of absence;
 - 11. If, while on a leave of absence, for any personal reasons, accepts other employment without permission, or;

Discipline or discharge for just cause is limited to the following:

- 1. Oral reprimand
- Written reprimand
- Demotion
- 4. Suspension
- Dismissal

If a department head or other supervisor has reason to discipline an employee, they shall make all possible efforts to impose such discipline in a manner that will not embarrass or humiliate the employee.

In the event the District determines the nature of the misconduct is so severe as to warrant immediate suspension, the District will suspend the employee with pay pending an investigation into possible misconduct. Ordinarily the District shall complete its

investigation within fifteen (15) working days and a determination made regarding any disciplinary action. Disciplinary action involving suspension without pay, demotion or termination shall become effective on the date of formal notification from the Superintendent or designee.

Any disciplinary action imposed upon an employee, may be grieved only through the grievance procedure in this Agreement.

D. **DRUG TESTING:** The parties recognize the importance to the District, to bargaining unit employees and to the students and patrons of the Three Rivers School District that the workforce remains free of the effects of illegal drugs or controlled substances on the job. The District has the right to conduct drug testing under the following circumstances:

The District may require an employee to submit to drug testing if there is a reasonable suspicion¹ to believe that the employee may be under the influence of alcohol, illegal or controlled substances. Only supervisors or managers trained in detecting the signs and symptoms of drug use and/or the misuse of alcohol, illegal, and controlled substances may determine if reasonable suspicion exists. A written record of the observations leading to a reasonable suspicion test must be made and within twenty-four (24) hours of the observed behavior or before the results of the test are released, whichever is earlier. Testing may only be done at a laboratory accredited by the State of Oregon or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. All tests shall be split sample tests. Strict chain of evidence procedures shall be utilized. The employee shall be transported to the laboratory by the supervisor or manager of the District who determined that reasonable suspicion existed. The employee shall have the right to be accompanied by a Union representative and no questioning of the employee shall be permitted. Refusal to submit to testing shall be considered the equivalent of a confirmed positive test result.

An employee's first confirmed positive test may be cause for discipline but shall not be cause for termination, provided the employee agrees to participate in a treatment program as recommended by the employee's medical practitioner, successfully completes such program as well as any recommended follow-up, which may include a requirement of random testing, and provides whatever authorization is necessary to permit the District to verify compliance with the above. The employee is responsible for the costs of the treatment program if the cost of the program is not covered by the employee's health insurance. Said employee must submit to a fitness for duty exam before returning to work.

The Director of Human Resources will be the recipient of all results. The District will receive pass or fail results only. Employees who wish to challenge the accuracy of a positive result on the drug test may request that the test be repeated. The original specimen will be utilized for retesting. Requests for retesting must be submitted in

OSEA – THREE RIVERS SD 2022-23, 2023-24, 2024-25

¹ Reasonable Suspicion. A particularized and objective basis, supported by specific and articulable facts, for suspecting a person of criminal activity.

writing to the Human Resources office within two (2) working days of notification of a positive test result. Use of a Medical Review Officer (MRO) who is a licensed Physician in Oregon will validate sample results. If the drug testing inadvertently reveals that the employee may be taking medication for the treatment of a disability, this information will not be used by the District in a discriminatory manner and shall be subject to medical record keeping requirements.

An employee's second positive test result may be grounds for discipline up to discharge.

The District has a right to test employees pursuant to regulations issued by the Department of Transportation.

E. **SUPERVISOR TRAINING:** The District will continue to provide classified management supervisors with supervisory training through the programs sponsored by the District, Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI), OSEA or other agencies.

ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

A. DEFINITIONS

- 1. **GRIEVANCE**: Grievance shall be an allegation by an employee or group of employees or the Union that the district has violated a provision of this Agreement.
- 2. **GRIEVANT:** The grievant is the person, persons, or Union making the claim.
- 3. **PARTY OF INTEREST:** A party of interest is anyone involved in the grievance who has a bona fide legal interest in the resolution of the grievance.
- 4. IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: The immediate supervisor is the one who has direct administrative or supervisory responsibilities over the grievant in the area of grievance. In the event the grievant is a group of employees in the same or different classification, or the Union, these grievances shall be initiated at Level Two.
- 5. **DAYS:** Days shall, except where otherwise indicated, mean District business days.
- 6. STEWARD: A Steward is a bargaining unit employee who has been through a specific course of instruction provided by the Union to provide representation, advocacy and contract administration duties for bargaining unit members. Stewards shall be allowed time away from the job to investigate and represent grievants without loss of pay. The Union shall provide a list of all Stewards to the District by September 15 of each year.

B. ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

- 1. **TIME LIMITS:** Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of days indicated at each level shall be considered as a maximum and every effort shall be made to expedite the process.
 - a. Grievances and decisions shall be in writing and filed within the time limits specified below unless such limits are extended by mutual consent.
 - b. When no mutual consent to extend time limits exists, failure to file an appeal within the prescribed time limits constitutes a waiver of further appeal steps.
 - c. When no mutual consent to extend time limits exists, failure to respond in writing to the grievance shall allow such grievance to automatically proceed to the next step of the procedure.
- 2. No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the Board, the Union, or by any employee of the District against any party of interest, or any other participant in the grievance procedure because of such participation.

- 3. **SEPARATE GRIEVANCE FILE:** All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 4. **FORMS:** All grievances shall be presented in writing on forms provided by the Union.
- 5. **MEETINGS AND HEARINGS:** Meetings and hearings under this procedure shall be conducted in private and shall include only such parties in interest and their designated or selected representatives, heretofore referred to in this Article. Both parties agree these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.
- 6. REPRESENTATION: The grievant may be represented at all levels of the grievance procedure by themselves, or at their option, by a Union representative. In the event the employee declines Union representation, the Union shall be so informed by the employee. The District shall notify the employee and the Union of all grievance meetings. The Union shall be allowed attendance to ensure the integrity of this Agreement and that any settlement to a grievance is not inconsistent with the express terms of this agreement.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The grievance procedure shall consist of four (4) steps as follows:

Level One: Principal or Immediate Supervisor

Each grievance shall be initiated within fifteen (15) days after the occurrence of the cause for the claim, or within fifteen (15) days following the grievant's first knowledge of the cause, whichever is later. Failure to initiate action within these limits will constitute a waiver of the claim.

The grievant shall present the grievance in writing and discuss the problem with their principal or immediate supervisor. The principal or immediate supervisor will give their answer in writing within ten (10) days. The Union's designated representative may be present at this meeting at the request of the grievant.

Level Two: Superintendent

Within ten (10) days, if the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of their grievance at Level One, they shall file the grievance in writing with the Superintendent or their designated representative. The Superintendent or designated representative shall hear the appeal and render a decision within ten (10) days, or may, their discretion within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, refer it to the Board level.

Level Three: School Board

Within ten (10) days, if the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of their grievance at Level Two, they may file their appeal with the School Board. The School Board may

hear the appeal and render its decision within ten (10) days after hearing the appeal. The parties may agree to appeal a Level Two decision directly to Arbitration.

Level Four: Arbitration

- 1. Within ten (10) days, if the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of their grievance at Level Two or Level Three, whichever hears the grievance, they shall file their notice of intent with the Union and the Board to appeal the grievance to arbitration. The Union within ten (10) days of receipt of such request shall advise the District in writing if they intend to arbitrate the grievance.
- 2. Within ten (10) days after such notice or intent, the Board and the grievant and/or their representative, unless they can mutually agree to an arbitrator, shall request a list of arbitrators from the Employment Relations Board (ERB).
- 3. The parties shall then be bound by the rules and procedures of the Employment Relations Board (ERB) provided, however, that the issues in dispute will be submitted to the arbitrator in a formal submission agreement. Expedited rules of the Employment Relations Board (ERB) may be used by mutual agreement of the parties.
- 4. The arbitrator shall not have the power or authority to amend, modify, alter, add to, or subtract from this Agreement.
- 5. The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties.
- 6. The Union and the District shall equally share the cost of the arbitrator's fee and expenses.

Complaint Procedure

A complaint is an allegation by an employee, group of employees or the Union of unfair or inequitable treatment which is not grievable under this Agreement. However, a complaint may be processed through the grievance procedure of this Agreement up to and including Level Two.

ARTICLE 9 PERSONNEL RECORDS

- A. The official personnel records for each classified employee shall be maintained in the District's Central Office. Such records shall include, but not be limited to:
 - 1. Evaluation of the employee's work.
 - 2. Any records of disciplinary action.

Such personnel records shall not contain any information of a derogatory nature which does not bear the employee's signature or initials indicating that the employee has been shown the material or a statement by the supervisor that the employee has been shown the material and has refused to sign or initial such material.

- B. An employee shall have the right to attach a written statement of explanation to any material which the employee believes to be incorrect or derogatory.
- C. Each classified employee shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of his or her personnel file at the district office. A representative of the Union may, at the employee's request, accompany the employee in this review. A Union representative may, with written permission from the employee, review a personnel file of an employee. All other personnel record inspection will be according to Three Rivers School District Board Policy.
- D. Informal contents of a building working file such as summaries of conversation or letters of expectation that have not generated formal disciplinary action in the official personnel file kept at the district office shall be considered temporary and shall be removed upon request of the employee provided such conduct has not occurred within the preceding three (3) years.

ARTICLE 10 WORK TIME

- A. **WORK WEEK:** The standard work week in Three Rivers/Josephine County School District commences at 12:01 a.m. Sunday and concludes at 12:00 midnight Saturday. The work time for regular full-time employees shall consist of forty (40) hours of work during this standard work week.
- B. **WORK DAY:** The standard work day for a regular full-time employee shall consist of a minimum of eight (8) hours of work, not to exceed 10 (ten) hours of work excluding lunch period. For a regular part-time employee (less than eight hours) the work day shall consist of the number of daily hours established for the particular job they fill. District business days will be Monday-Friday.
- C. **CALL IN REQUIREMENT**: Any bargaining unit member whose shift begins at 12:00 noon or thereafter will provide at least four hours prior notice to their supervisor of such absence and the reasons therefore.
- D. **LUNCH PERIODS:** Employees who work six (6) or more hours a day shall have scheduled an uninterrupted lunch period of one-half (½) hour, and such lunch period shall not be credited as time worked for any purpose and shall not be paid time. The lunch period shall be scheduled by the supervisor as nearly as is practicable to midshift.
 - Regular part-time employees may have lunch periods scheduled as is practicable and prudent, of not less than one-half $(\frac{1}{2})$ hour duration, upon agreement between the employee and supervisor.
- E. **BREAKS:** Each employee shall be eligible for a fifteen (15) minute break during each work shift of four (4) continuous hours, normally between one and one-half (1½) and two and one-half (2½) hours after the start of the shift. Breaks shall be scheduled by the supervisor. Except in an emergency, any employee who is scheduled to work four (4) or more hours in one (1) day shall receive fifteen (15) minutes of paid break time during the four (4) hours. Except in an emergency, any employee who works eight (8) or more hours in one (1) day shall receive thirty (30) minutes of paid break time during the eight (8) hours. Employees who are scheduled for less than four (4) hours may be scheduled for breaks at the discretion of the supervisor.
- F. **REPORTING TIME:** Each employee shall report for work on time at the beginning of their work day as established by the supervisor, unless notified otherwise prior to that employee's reporting to work. Regular employees reporting to work, but not put to work, shall receive two (2) hours pay unless notified prior to the reporting time that their services are not required.

G. OVERTIME:

- 1. Employees working a five (5) day work week shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½), in the form of pay or compensatory time off, at the discretion of the employee for overtime work in excess of eight (8) hours per day or forty (40) hours in any designated workweek. For the purpose of computing overtime, all time for which an employee is compensated, including paid leave, shall be credited as time worked. The District will not pay overtime and double-time for the same hours worked.
 - a. Employees working a four (4) day work week, will earn overtime in excess of ten (10) hours per day or forty (40) hours per week.
- 2. Overtime shall be computed to the nearest quarter hour. Overtime pay shall be based on the actual number of hours on duty, except in the case of call back time
- 3. In the event that sufficient acceptable personnel do not voluntarily accept overtime, additional personnel, as deemed necessary by the District, shall be required to work overtime.
- 4. Overtime is to be approved by the supervisor in advance. In the event of an emergency, approval may be given after the fact
- 5. Wastewater Treatment Operators who inspect facilities on the weekends will receive two (2) hours of overtime each weekend day, if a problem occurs requiring more than two (2) hours of work on one or both of those days, the Operator shall contact the Director of Maintenance prior to performing the additional work. Overtime payment or compensatory time will be paid at time and one-half (1½) for actual hours worked, once the criteria in #1 above are met.

H. COMPENSATORY TIME:

- 1. Compensatory time off must be taken within twelve (12) months from the time it is earned. If the District is unable to schedule such compensatory time off within the period, the employee shall be paid upon request in their regular pay period. When comp time is earned as overtime, it will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½).
- 2. Accrual and use of compensatory time are to be approved by the supervisor in advance. In the event of an emergency, approval to accrue compensatory time may be given after the fact.
- 3. Employees must be permitted to use accrued comp time within a reasonable period after requesting time off, unless it would unduly disrupt the operations of the District.
- 4. If employees have not been able to use their accrued comp time by the end of the school year, they will have that time paid by the District at their current rate of pay in their last payroll check of the fiscal year, unless prior arrangements have been

made to accrue the time.

5. An employee may accrue up to a maximum of forty (40) hours comp time. Upon separation of employment, all unused compensatory time shall be paid to the employee at their current rate of pay.

I. EXTRA DUTY COMPENSATION:

- The parties agree that the following conditions will be applied to the hiring and paying of classified employees who work at athletic and/or extra-curricular functions. Examples of assignments include but are not limited to ticket takers, gatekeepers, scorekeepers, running game clocks, student supervision, security, dance chaperones, etc.
 - a. Classified employees do not qualify for overtime pay when working such assignments as described above, because these assignments are considered occasional or sporadic, and are in a different capacity, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act.
 - b. Classified employees hired for such assignments as described above shall be paid the same hourly rate as published annually on the District's Extra Duty Salary Schedule (see Appendix B). In no case will classified employees be paid less than other employees for these same duties.
- 2. Extra Duty coaching assignments will be offered to both licensed and classified employees.
 - a. Coaching assignments should not regularly interfere with an employee's regular work duties.
 - b. Coaching assignments are routine in nature and are, therefore, subject to overtime which is defined as work in excess of forty (40) hours in any designated work week, including holiday time.
 - c. The hourly rate of pay for classified extra-curricular coaching or extra duty assignments shall be determined based on the current Oregon Minimum Wage. In no case will classified employees be paid less total salary than other employees for these same duties.
 - d. Employees who need to leave work early due to an in District coaching assignment, have the following options for hours missed in their regular work assignment:
 - Employees may work with their direct supervisor to flex their hours for the week. Flexing is an option provided that the employee is able to complete their full job responsibilities when flexing their hours, as determined by the supervisor/administrator and must be resolved in the same workweek.

- 2) Should the employee not be able to use the flex time option, employees have the option of using personal leave, compensatory leave, or vacation time.
- J. **CALL-BACK TIME:** Employees called back to work shall receive overtime pay with a guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1½) for the work for which they are called back. This provision applies only when call-back results in hours worked which are not annexed consecutively to one end or the other of the working day or working shift. This provision does not apply to scheduled overtime, call-in times annexed to the beginning of the work shift, or holdover times annexed to the end of the work shift or work day.
- K. SCHOOL CLOSURE DAYS / TWO-HOUR DELAYS: Regular employees who report to work, but not put to work, shall receive two (2) hours pay at the employee's regular rate of pay unless notified prior to the reporting time that their services are not required. An employee will not be paid if the District gave reasonable notice by radio, social media, television or telephone beforehand. (Supervisor to telephone those who cannot receive radio signals.)

In the event of school closure due to inclement weather or other emergency, all 260-day staff are required to report to work when safe to do so. If unable to do so, 260-day staff may use personal or vacation leave, if available.

If the District determines schools are to be closed due to inclement weather, natural disasters, fuel shortage, or other circumstances beyond the District's control, and District personnel are instructed not to report, classified employees will be paid their normal rate for the first three (3) days of closure. It is understood that the District reserves the right to reschedule the closure days requiring all District personnel to make up the closure day. If the District reschedules employee makeup days, classified employees will work their regular shifts on employee makeup days without pay for the designated trade day(s). Failure to work on makeup days will result in a pay dock for the period not worked.

In the event of a two-hour delay, provided notice provisions were met, all classified employees, starting before the two-hour delay, will report to work two hours after their normally scheduled work time or at the new start time, whichever comes first. All employees whose start time is after the two-hour delay will report at their normal work time. The exceptions to the above are:

Maintenance Staff
District Office Staff
Office Managers
Head Custodians
Other staff designated by the Building Principal by October 31st.

The above designated staff should report to work at their regularly scheduled time,

unless it is not safe. Staff required to work should report to work when it is safe to travel.

Note: Newbridge staff will follow the school closure of Grants Pass School District No. 7.

K. EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANT CLERICAL TIME: Upon request, educational assistants assigned to the elementary schools shall be granted up to 15 minutes clerical time per week within their regularly assigned hours at the discretion of their building administrator in order to review and/or organize material for working with small groups of students. This time may be scheduled either in one block or scheduled sporadically throughout the week. An educational assistant who feels the time granted is not adequate, shall contact his or her building principal to review the circumstances.

ARTICLE 11 SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALL

- A. **SENIORITY:** Seniority is defined as the continuous length of service with the District. Seniority shall not accrue when an employee is on an approved leave of absence without pay for personal reasons.
 - 1. A REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE is a seniority employee who is scheduled to work forty (40) hours per week.
 - 2. A REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEE is a seniority employee who is scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per week.
 - 3. A SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYEE is an irregular employee temporarily replacing a regular employee during an absence.
 - 4. **TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES** are defined as those irregular employees hired for a specific period of time not to exceed the equivalent of four (4) months and those hired for a specific purpose or function the completion of which will be by the end of the fiscal year.
 - 5. **PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES** are full-time and part-time employees who have not achieved regular status.
 - 6. **CLASSIFICATION** is a grouping of job titles.
 - 7. **JOB TITLE** is a grouping of like positions. EXAMPLE: All Custodian's.
 - 8. **POSITION** is a specific job assignment at a specific location.
 - 9. In the case of a temporary employee achieving permanent status in a temporary position, the seniority date shall be based on the employee's length of continuous service (excluding a break in service of no more than two (2) workdays for illness or family emergency within the four (4) months) with the District from their last date of hire in the position in which the employee is achieving permanent status.
- B. **SUSPENSION OF SENIORITY:** Seniority shall be retained but shall not continue to accrue during authorized leaves of absence without pay.
- C. **ACCRUAL OF SENIORITY:** All authorized leaves with pay shall be considered as continuous employment for purposes of computing seniority.

D. ELIMINATION OF POSITION

- 1. Elimination of a position, or reduction of over two (2) hours per day of an employee with seniority, shall result in the following options being available to such employee:
 - a. The affected employee may use their seniority to replace an employee with

- the least seniority in their job title, OR
- The affected employee may use their seniority to replace an employee with the least seniority in an equal or lower paying job title within their classification, OR
- c. The affected employee may apply for other vacant positions within the District in accordance with provisions of Article XI, Vacancies.
- d. If such elimination of a position results in travel of ten (10) or more miles from the previous position, the affected employee may opt for layoff.
- e. Any employee with one (1) year of seniority who has their work schedule reduced will not have their hourly wage reduced if they are laid off to a lower position.
- f. If one of the above options is not chosen, the employee shall be laid off.
- 2. The process shall be repeated until the least senior employee in the lowest job title affected is eliminated.
- 3. No regular employee shall be eliminated from a job title until all probationary, substitute, and temporary employees in the classification and job title have been terminated, except as stated in 4 below.
- 4. The District reserves the right to retain or recall out of order of seniority for those positions which are to be mutually defined by both parties.
- 5. If an employee is cut two (2) hours per day or less, and those hours are reinstated at that site at a later date, then the employee who originally held those hours would have first right of refusal.

E. LAYOFF

- 1. Layoff shall be by seniority.
- 2. The least senior employee in a job title affected shall be laid off first. The laid off employee may use their seniority to replace any employee with less seniority in an equal or lower paying job title within their classification. If the laid off employee has accrued seniority based upon successful experience in another job classification, they may elect to replace any employee with less seniority in an equal or lower paying job title within that classification. An employee cannot move to a different classification, unless they have prior experience in that classification.
- 3. The reduction process shall be repeated until the least senior employee in the lowest job title affected is laid off.
- 4. No regular employee shall be laid off in a classification or job title until all probationary, substitute and temporary employees in the job title have been laid off except as stated in six (6.) below.
- 5. No new employees shall be hired into a job title from which regular employees are laid off, or where regular employees have their hours reduced by over two (2) hours

- per day and for which they remain qualified for recall. The intent of this subparagraph is to encourage the District to make every effort to reinstate lost hours to employees who are laid off or who have had their hours reduced by over two (2) hours per day.
- 6. The District reserves the right to retain or recall out of order of seniority for those positions which are to be mutually defined by both parties.

F. NOTIFICATION

- 1. If the District is contemplating lay off or the reduction of over two (2) hours per day of any classified employee(s), it will notify the Union through the Chapter President and copy to the Field Representative of the potential adversely affected employees not less than one month before the subject matter is scheduled for formal board discussion. Such notice will be in writing and will include the specified positions to be affected, the proposed time schedule, and the reasons for the proposed action.
- District shall notify the affected employee in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to lay off or position elimination, by hand delivery or by certified letter sent to the employee at their last known address as furnished to the District by the employee.

In all cases of job elimination, layoff and recall, employees must meet District standards of qualification and capability as defined in Article 2, A) (4).

G. RECALL

- 1. Recall shall be in inverse order of layoff except for an employee who has exercised seniority when laid off may remain in the position selected provided such decision does not bar another employee with lesser seniority from employment. A laid-off employee may also limit their recall to a position within ten (10) miles of their previous position and within two (2) hours per day of their previous workday.
- 2. Recall from layoff shall be by certified letter. It shall be the employee's responsibility to maintain an address with the District. The employee has the responsibility to keep the Department of Human Resources office informed if they are going to be gone from this address for a period exceeding five (5) working days. Employees recalled to a position must accept the recall within five District business days of being notified. Failure to accept recall will result in an employee being removed from the recall list. The District may use any other means to return an employee sooner.
- H. Seniority and the employment relationship shall be broken or terminated if an employee:
 - 1. Quits:
 - 2. Is discharged for just cause, unless the employee's discharge is overturned, and

- the employee is reinstated;
- 3. Is absent from work for three (3) consecutive working days without notification to the District except in extraordinary situations;
- 4. Is laid off and fails to report to work within ten (10) days after receiving written notice of recall unless reasonable excuse is provided to the District;
- 5. Is laid off from work for any reason for twenty-seven (27) months, or for a period of time equal to their seniority, whichever is shorter;
- 6. Fails to report to work at the termination of a leave of absence;
- 7. If, while on a leave of absence, for any personal reasons, accepts other employment without permission, or
- 8. If the employee retires.

ARTICLE 12 EMPLOYEE PROBATION

A. **PROBATIONARY PERIOD:** The probationary period is an integral part of the employee selection process and provides the District with the opportunity to upgrade and improve operations by observing a new employee's work, training, aiding new employees in adjustment to their positions, and by providing an opportunity to reject any employee whose work performance fails to meet required work standards.

Every new employee hired into the District shall serve a probationary period of sixty (60) work days, after which they shall be considered a regular employee and granted seniority to the last date of hire. Should the employee be considered for termination before reaching the end of the 60 work-day probation, the administrator can submit a request to the Director of Human Resources to extend the probation by 30 workdays. The employee will be notified, in writing, no less than 10 days before the 60-day probation ends of the reason for the extension. The Union will be notified of all probationary extensions.

- 1. Substitute, temporary, and state or federally-funded employees who have worked for the District on a continuous basis, will have that period of time considered towards seniority as part of the probationary period in the event they are retained as regular employees of the District.
- 2. The Union recognizes the right of the District to terminate probationary employees for any reason, and to exercise all rights not specifically modified by this Agreement with respect to such employees, including, but not limited to, the shifting of work schedules and job classifications, and the assignment of on-the-job training and cross-training in other classifications. It is further provided that the District may assign probationary employees to educational courses and training programs, including on their off-duty time; the District to pay the cost of tuition, fees, books; and at the discretion of the administration, use flex time, comp time or be paid. Termination of a probationary employee shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.
- B. **PROMOTIONAL TRIAL PERIOD:** Regular employees promoted into a higher classification shall serve a promotional trial period of two (2) full months. The Union also recognizes the right of the District to return an employee on promotional trial status to their previous position. Additionally, the employee may voluntarily return to their previous position within the two (2) month trial period.

ARTICLE 13 VACANCIES

- A. **POSTING PROCESS:** If a vacancy occurs in the bargaining unit which the District desires to fill, the following process shall be implemented, unless the position is eliminated:
 - 1. The vacancy notice shall be posted online six (6) working days prior to the time the employer seeks a replacement. In case of extenuating circumstances, the District may request the Association waive the six (6) day time limit
 - 2. A copy of the posting shall be posted electronically utilizing the District's posting system.
 - Job descriptions shall be given to the Union President and made available at each work site. Current work load requirements are at full capacity, and therefore only reasonable work assignments per the employee's job description will be assigned.
 - 4. Employees in the bargaining unit desiring consideration for the vacant position shall submit a transfer request following the district transfer request process within six (6) working days from the date of posting
- B. **SELECTION:** The District shall screen the requests and give first consideration to employees in the bargaining unit who have submitted a transfer request and are capable and qualified to perform the required duties. No outside candidate shall be interviewed until all selected internal candidates are interviewed and considered. In the event that the transfer requests exceed seven (7), the District will choose the top five (5) candidates, minimum. The following process shall be implemented:
 - Employees selected for interview shall be considered on the basis of
 Skill and ability, 2) work history, and 3) knowledge

The District shall be the judge of an employee's capabilities and qualifications, including skill and ability.

- 2. Seniority shall prevail when the above are equal in the opinion of the District Evaluator.
- 3. The District shall be under no obligation to train an employee to become qualified.
- 4. During the selection process, the District may fill a position at its discretion if an emergency requires the District to do so, provided the vacancy shall promptly be posted as set forth above.
- 5. An employee not accepted will be notified. If the employee desires further explanation he or she may contact the deciding administrator within five (5)

working days of the selection announcement. If after that contact, they desire further explanation they may submit a request in writing to the Department of Human Resources within fifteen (15) days of the selection announcement. The District shall provide a written explanation to the employee within five (5) working days of the request. Copies of both shall be provided to the Union.

- C. **CHANGE OF POSITION:** When a move is to a lower paying job title, the employee keeps their original date of seniority within both job titles. When a move is to a higher paying position, the employee keeps their original date of seniority in the old job title and obtains a new date of seniority, that of the change to the new job title.
- D. **PROMOTION:** If promoted out of the bargaining unit an employee may return within six (6) months with no loss of seniority.
- E. **SUMMER EMPLOYMENT:** Opportunities for summer employment, which shall be considered temporary, shall also be posted in each school for six (6) working days, and a copy of the posting provided to the Union President, before the vacancy is filled by a new employee, unless an emergency requires the District to fill the position pending selection. Employees selected by the posting process must fulfill requirements set forth above.

All current classified employees who apply for summer bargaining unit work and meet minimum qualifications will be offered jobs prior to the District hiring other summer employees.

ARTICLE 14 PAID VACATION

A. A twelve-month employee shall be eligible for an annual vacation with pay in accordance with the following. Vacation days will be awarded on the employee's anniversary date of hire.

Years of Employment with District	Vacation Days
1-3 Years	10 Days
4-6 Years	15 Days
7+ Years	20 Days

- B. Vacations shall be scheduled by mutual agreement of the employee and the District, must be taken within a fiscal year. Year round employees may carry over up to five (5) days to be used within 12 months of their anniversary date, but may not accrue beyond that date.
- C. Employees who wish to take their vacation time prior to completion of an entire year of service may use up to half of the vacation hours from the next year provided they sign a waiver allowing the District to deduct the vacation pay from the employee's wages at the time of termination should the employee quit prior to completing the entire year of service.
- D. The employee shall make every effort to exhaust vacation leave during the year in which it is earned. Should extenuating circumstances exist outside of the employee's control for that to happen, the employee should contact Human Resources to schedule any remaining vacation time not used during the year it was earned. If the District refuses to allow an employee to take their vacation days during the year in which it is earned, the District will compensate the employee for vacation time earned on their paycheck directly following their anniversary date in lieu of taking accrued vacation time.

ARTICLE 15 PAID HOLIDAYS

A. Each classified employee shall receive the following paid holidays provided they work the last scheduled day before and the first scheduled day after such holiday. Less than full-time employees shall receive paid holidays on a pro-rated basis.

B. Annual Employees (year-round)

1. July 4	7. Christmas Day
2. Labor Day	8. Day after Christmas
3. Veterans' Day	9. New Year's Day
4. Thanksgiving Day	10. Presidents' Day
5. Day after Thanksgiving	11. Memorial Day
6. Day before Christmas	12. Juneteenth

Newbridge High School

1. July 4	6. Christmas Day
2. Labor Day	7. New Year's Day
3. Veterans' Day	8. Presidents' Day
4. Thanksgiving Day	9. Memorial Day
5. Day after Thanksgiving	

Academic Year Employees (begins work prior to Labor Day)

1. Labor Day	5. Christmas Day
2. Veterans' Day	6. New Year's Day
3. Thanksgiving Day	7. Presidents' Day
4. Day after Thanksgiving	8. Memorial Day

Student Contact Employees

Labor Day to be paid only when required to report prior to Labor Day

Labor Day to be paid only when required to report prior to Labor Day		
1. Labor Day	5. Christmas Day	
1. Labor Day	o. Omounas Bay	
2. Veterans' Day	6. New Year's Day	
z. Votorano Bay	o. How roar o bay	
3. Thanksgiving Day	7. Presidents' Day	
or maning and	The state of the s	
4. Day after Thanksgiving	8. Memorial Day	
4. Day after manksgiving	o. Memorial Day	

- C. In the event the state or federal government declares the holiday to be on a day different from the above, that date shall be the holiday.
- D. Whenever any of the above days falls on a Saturday, the previous Friday shall be considered the paid holiday. Whenever any of the above days falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered the paid holiday. Under no circumstances shall employees lose paid holidays due to the fact that they fall on a weekend.
- E. An employee who is called to work on a holiday will be paid at one and one-half ($1\frac{1}{2}$) times their regular rate of pay. The District guarantees a minimum of four (4) hours at time and a half ($1\frac{1}{2}$) pay in addition to their regular holiday pay.
- F. Employees who are on paid leave, and who have followed all appropriate leave procedures, will receive applicable holiday pay.

ARTICLE 16 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

All employees are responsible for following applicable policies and procedures for being absent. All individual leave allocations will be allocated in hourly equivalents equal to the total number of hours the employee is assigned.

A. PAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

1. SICK LEAVE

- a. All sick leaves allocated under SB454 and ORS 332.507 will run concurrently.
- b. The District shall allow each employee at least ten (10) days sick leave at full pay for each school year, or one day per month employed, whichever is greater.
- c. Sick leave days may be accumulated by employees only if not used in the year for which granted. Total sick leave which can be accumulated by any employee under this Agreement shall be unlimited.
- d. Sick leave at full pay in excess of five (5) consecutive work days shall be allowed only upon certificate of the employee's attending physician or practitioner, if requested by the District, that the illness or injury prevents the employee from working.
- e. An employee returning from any illness of more than five (5) consecutive school days, whether or not sick leave benefits have been paid, may be required to furnish a medical doctor's certificate of health prior to returning to work, in order to safeguard the health of students and fellow employees.
- f. Sick leave may be taken for your own illness, injury or health condition, including the need for medical diagnosis, care or treatment of your own illness, injury or health condition. This includes preventative medical care such as annual exams, screenings such as mammograms, colonoscopies, etc.
- g. Sick leave may be taken to care for a covered family member's illness, injury or health condition, including the need for medical diagnosis, care or treatment of your own illness, injury or health condition. This includes preventative medical care such as annual exams, screenings such as mammograms, colonoscopies, etc. Covered family members include your spouse, Oregon registered same-sex domestic partner, child, child of your Oregon registered same-sex domestic partner, parent-in-law, parent of your Oregon registered same-sex domestic partner, grandparent, or grandchild.
- h. OFLA reasons: For any reason covered by the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA). This includes your own serious health condition (but not workers' compensation leave, unless you refuse a suitable offer of modified duty); a covered family member's serious health condition; parent leave (care for your newborn, recently adopted or newly placed foster child within 12 months of the date of birth or placement); "sick child" leave (under 18 or adult disabled dependent child who has an illness, injury or condition that is not a serious

- health condition but requires home care); or bereavement leave (limited to a maximum of two weeks per family member, per 12-month period, and must be taken within 60 days of learning of the death).
- i. Domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault, or stalking: Time off to address a situation in which you, your child (under 18 or adult disabled dependent), or someone for who you are a guardian is the victim of domestic violence, harassment that is criminal under Oregon state law, sexual assault, or stalking.
- j. Public health emergency: Closure of our business, or of your child's school or care provider due to a public health emergency; decision by a public health official or health care provider that the presence of you or your covered family member in the community would jeopardize the health of others; or when a law or regulation requires us to exclude you from the workplace for health reasons.
- k. Pregnancy: Normal pregnancy disability shall be defined as work disability caused by normal childbirth. Normal pregnancy disability shall be eligible for accumulated sick leave benefits.
- I. Oregon Workers Compensation Leave: Any absence from work while temporarily disabled by reason of a compensable industrial accident or disease shall be counted as sick leave unless the employee elects in writing not to be so paid. Payment will be based on the difference between the employee's temporary disability benefits and their regular salary. The employee will be charged fractional sick leave to the nearest half hour, according to the fraction of their daily so paid.
- m. Sick leave shall be granted and accounted for in accordance with state and federal laws. The District will comply with the provisions of the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) and the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). In calculating OFLA and FMLA usage, the District will use a rolling backward year, but sick leave may be accessed by any District employee when working, this includes 10 month employees who are performing work during the summer or any breaks even if this work is considered temporary or as a substitute.
- n. OSEA Leave: For those employees who have been employed for a twelve-month period but do not meet the required number of hours/days to be eligible for FMLA or OFLA, the District shall provide twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave, district paid insurance (if eligible), and position protection provided the employee otherwise meets the FMLA/OFLA definition of "serious health condition." The District may require employees to provide proof of the "serious health condition." The twelve (12) week unpaid leave shall not be in addition to other unpaid leave available within this article. Any accrued paid leave shall run concurrently with this twelve (12) week unpaid leave. This leave is not granted in addition to OFLA/FMLA leave but is only an option for employees who do not otherwise qualify for OFLA/FMLA.
- o. Upon PERS eligible retirement, and not less than ten (10) consecutive years of

employment with the District, the District will pay the retiree \$1.00 per hour of accumulated sick leave. The employee shall receive a lump sum payment upon retirement that may be subject to withholding of state and/or federal income taxes.

p. Sick Leave Bank

- 1. The sick leave bank is intended to provide employees with paid time in the event of a "serious health condition" that makes the employee unable to perform the functions of their position once they have used all accumulated paid time off. Participation in the Sick Leave Bank is voluntary.
- 2. Serious Health Condition: Any illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility or continued treatment by a health care provider. This does not include elective surgery or medical procedures that can be postponed until recess periods unless ordered by a physician, or illnesses that are considered normal and routine such as colds, flu, etc.
- 3. On even-numbered years, or following 120 days of continuous service, for those bargaining unit members who have joined the Sick Leave Bank, one (1) day of sick leave shall be transferred to the bank no later than the October payroll. The Department of Human Resources shall maintain a record of contributions and withdrawals from the sick leave bank. During July of each year a record of the prior fiscal year sick leave bank calculations will be given to the Union.

4. Eligibility:

- (a) Must be an employee covered by the terms of this Agreement
- (b) Must have contributed to the sick leave bank during the current year to request a draw from the bank.
- (c) Must first complete 120 days of continuous service with the District prior to joining and presenting a claim.
- (d) Sick leave bank time can be utilized only in cases of employee medical absences (as defined above) which involve an initial minimum of five (5) consecutive working days. Once the employee is absent from work for a period of five (5) consecutive working days, coverage will be effective as of the day that the employee has utilized all of their own accumulated paid time off. In cases involving a chronic recurring condition once the employee has met the initial qualification period they would be entitled ongoing pay from the sick leave bank with medical documentation of the continued condition.
- (e) Employees must provide medical documentation from their treating physician indicating medical necessity to be away from work to the Director of Human Resources, who will approve or deny the request. This must contain at minimum the date of first treatment and date of projected availability to return to work.

- 5. Employees will be eligible for up to twenty (20) days of sick leave bank days in any school year period.
- 2. OREGON WORKERS COMPENSATION LEAVE: Any absence from work while temporarily disabled by reason of a compensable industrial accident or disease shall be counted as sick leave unless the employee shall elect in writing not to be so paid. Payment will be based on the difference between the employee's temporary disability benefits and their regular salary. The employee will be charged fractional sick leave to the nearest half hour, according to the fraction of their daily salary so paid. All calculations are to be done on the employee's gross contracted wage. Such compensation shall not conflict with state law.
- 3. **PERSONAL LEAVE:** Each employee shall be granted three (3) days of personal leave annually.
 - a. Personal leave shall be allowed up to three (3) days per school year, usable in not less than one (1) hour portions. The three (3) days shall not be deducted from sick leave and are not accumulative. The granting of such leave shall be subject to the following conditions:
 - 1) The purpose of the three (3) day personal leave is to care for matters of a personal or business nature which cannot be done other than during school hours. Personal leave shall not be used as recreation or vacation leave, to extend a vacation period, for Union business, to serve as a litigant or witness against the District, or for personal illness if the employee has accrued sick leave.
 - 2) Personal leave should be approved at least five (5) days in advance by the building administrator whenever such prior approval is feasible. Leaves for involuntary absences occasioned by personal business of an emergency nature should be applied for within five (5) days upon return to service. Leave requests shall be submitted on an approved form.
 - b. In requesting personal leave, the bargaining unit member need only state the nature of the matter to be taken care of (medical, family illness, discretionary,), but personal leave may be accessed by any District employee when working, this includes 10 month employees who are performing work during the summer or any breaks even if this work is considered temporary or as a substitute.
 - c. Unused personal leave shall be reimbursed at the employees current hourly rate for up to one (1) unused day and up to 2 full days may be rolled and is automatically canceled upon termination of employment. Any unused partial days will be forfeit. Personal days shall be reimbursed at the District default detailed below. If an employee has:

- **3 Personal Days Remaining-** One <u>(1)</u> day will be paid at the employee's hourly rate and two <u>(2)</u> Personal Days will be rolled over for the following school year.
- **2 Personal Days Remaining-** Two (2) Personal Days will be rolled over for the following school year.
- **1 Personal Day Remaining-** One <u>(1)</u> Personal Day will be rolled over for the following school year.

Exceptions: If an employee chooses a different reimbursement than the default, they must notify Human Resources prior to June 1 of the current school year. Only one (1) day total will be eligible for reimbursement without exception.

Example: Pay one and roll one or pay one.

The Director of Human Resources may grant additional personal days due to extraordinary circumstances. These additional days may be unpaid and will not be rolled over or reimbursed.

- d. Newly-hired permanent employees will receive personal leave days on a prorated basis depending on their date of hire within the current school year. Employees hired between July 1 and the end of November will receive three (3) days of personal leave; those employees hired after November but before March 15 will receive two (2) days, and those employees hired between March 16 and June 30 will receive one (1) day. Each employee receiving prorated personal days during this period will be granted the entire (3) days of personal leave for all subsequent years of hire.
- 4. JURY DUTY: When an employee is required to appear in court for jury duty, their regular pay will continue. However, the employee shall have deducted from their pay an amount equal to the pay received from the court for serving as a jury person for each day they are absent from work. The foregoing does not include court reimbursement for expenses. The employee shall return to work if they are excused from jury duty and can reasonably be expected to return by mid-point of their regularly scheduled shift, but in no case will the employee have to serve jury duty and work for the District more than a combination of eight (8) hours in any one day, including travel time.
- 5. COURT APPEARANCE LEAVE: Leave with pay shall be granted when an employee is subpoenaed to appear in court for actions related to school district matters in which the employee is a party, except when the employee is a litigant against the District. Additionally, employees will be granted leave with pay when required to report as a witness in cases which the employee has no interest. The employee must return to work immediately following their court appearance unless

their shift is past the mid-way point.

- * The compensatory rules under jury duty shall apply for court appearance leave as well.
- 6. FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE: Any employee who is granted a leave of absence with pay and who, for any reason, absent extraordinary circumstances fails to return to work at the expiration of said leave of absence, shall be considered to have resigned their position with the District, and their position shall be declared vacant, except and unless the employee, prior to the expiration of their leave of absence, has furnished evidence to their supervisor that they are unable to work by reason of illness, physical disability, or other legitimate reason beyond their control.
- 7. **BEREAVEMENT LEAVE**: The District shall grant up to five (5) days of paid Bereavement Leave for the death of a member of the immediate family: Said leave shall commence upon request of the employee. Immediate family shall be interpreted to mean employee's mother, father, spouse, son, daughter, sister, brother, step sibling, step parent, domestic partner, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchildren, grandparent or individual who acted "in loco parentis."*. In the event emergency conditions arise, an extension of this leave shall be determined upon individual circumstances by the Superintendent or designee.

Bereavement leave shall not be accumulated from year to year but may be accessed by any District employee when working, this includes 10 month employees who are performing work during the summer or any breaks even if this work is considered temporary or as a substitute.

The District shall comply with the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) regarding bereavement leave. The paid bereavement leave in this section shall run concurrently with leave under OFLA.

The definition of "family members" under OFLA is different than the definition of "immediate family" under this section. The additional leave provided under OFLA will only apply for family members defined under the law.

8. **UNION LEAVE:** Upon request, the District shall grant not to exceed ten (10) days leave to the Union per calendar year for officers and/or elected delegates to attend Union functions, with only the cost of the substitute deducted, if one is required. Said leave shall be requested by the Chapter President of the Union to the Director of Human Resources one (1) week in advance and shall not be granted for more than eight (8) persons at any one time. Leave taken without one (1) weeks' notice shall be without pay. No said leave will be granted in excess of ten (10) days per calendar year without prior consent of the District and shall be without pay. Union officers and/or elected delegates shall notify their building administrator when such leave is requested.

- B. UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE: There is no automatic right to unpaid leave and approval is not a guarantee of future approval.
 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE: Leaves of absence without pay not to exceed one (1) year
 may be granted upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. Requests for
 such leaves must be in writing. Such leave will not be approved for an employee
 for the purpose of accepting employment outside the service of the District unless
 such employment is outside the normal working hours of the employee.
 - a. For leaves of absence of four (4) months or less, the District will fill the employee's position on a temporary basis and upon the termination of the leave, the employee will be returned to their previous position.
 - b. For leaves of absence of more than four (4) months, the District does not assure the employee they will return to the previous position or that a position will be available at the end of the approved leave. The employee will be entitled to the first available position for which they are qualified. This does not apply to any position above the level of that held at the beginning of the leave. The employee shall have the right to reject an offered position if:
 - 1) The position is located more than twenty-five (25) miles from the previous location.
 - 2) The work day is more than two (2) hours less than that of the previous position.
 - 3) The pay for the position is more than twenty (20) cents per hour lower than that of the previous position.
 - 2. MATERNITY LEAVE: A pregnant employee shall be granted maternity leave which will be unpaid unless otherwise stated. Maternity leave shall commence and terminate upon determination of the employee's attending physician, provided that upon return to work the employee must be able to perform all normal duties as prescribed by the supervisor.
 - MILITARY LEAVE: Military leave with pay will be granted according to provisions
 of ORS 408.290. Active duty military leave employees who have been called to
 active military duty will be reinstated to the first available position for which they
 are qualified upon their return from duty.

Docked Pay Status – Employees should only be absent on approved leave. Employees who enter docked pay status may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

^{*&}quot;In loco parentis" means in the place of a parent, having financial or day-to-day responsibility for the care of a child. A legal or biological relationship is not required.

ARTICLE 17 BENEFITS

An ongoing insurance committee is established to review insurance coverage and prices to keep limits on spending and promote cost effective use of the insurance benefit package. The insurance committee shall consist of at least five (5) members: three (3) appointed by OSEA Chapter 22; and two (2) by the Superintendent. The insurance benefits shall be selected by OSEA Chapter 22.

Employees will receive the following insurance contributions based on their hours scheduled per week:

Hours per week	Percent of Contribution
20-31.75	87.5%
32-40	100%

The District's contribution to insurance will be based on a tiered rate on an insurance contribution from the District for eight (8) hour employees for the school year.

Employee Only \$568.61 Employee/Spouse \$1248.52 Employee/Children \$1044.66 Family \$1666.17

If the District agrees to a higher amount of any of the above tiered rates for any other bargaining or work group during the term of this agreement, the District shall increase the total for the classified bargaining group in the same amount/percentage.

In June 2023, the parties will re-open this Agreement for negotiation of insurance for contract year 2023-2024. Each of the parties may select one additional article to re-open for negotiations.

In June 2024, the parties will re-open this Agreement for negotiation of insurance for contract year 2024-2025. Each of the parties may select one additional article to re-open for negotiations.

Those employees who are married to other Three Rivers School District Employees will receive the tiered cap contribution from the District based on the number of hours worked for each employee.

For any bargaining unit employee who elects the District HSA plan, the District will contribute \$100 per month for full-time eight (8) hour employees or a pro-rated portion to

insurance-eligible employees who have less hours.

Retirees and active employees will be billed on a tiered rate.

- A. The District agrees to provide employee only "primary integration" long-term disability insurance for members of the bargaining unit working twenty (20) or more hours per week on an OSEA/District Committee adopted disability insurance plan.
- B. Insurance benefits will be available for the employees in the bargaining unit who work twenty (20) or more hours per week and shall take effect the first of the month following the date of hire. However, those employees who do not desire this coverage shall so indicate by signing a waiver of coverage.
- C. Classified employees hired for less than twenty (20) hours per week will not be eligible for insurance. Classified employees hired for twenty (20) or more hours but less than thirty-two (32) hours will receive insurance on a pro-rated basis. Employees working less than twenty hours (20) per week shall not be eligible for benefits.

Employees hired after July 1, 2000 who are working less than eight (8) hours, will have the option whether or not to purchase insurance. In the event a classified employee hired for less than forty (40) hours per week receives an increase in hours at a future date, the pro-rated portion of the insurance will adjust accordingly.

D. Opt-Out Incentive Program

The District and OSEA agree that insurance eligible OSEA members can access the Program subject to the following terms and conditions:

- a. The program will be available to any insurance eligible classified employee who opts out of all OEBB health care coverage (medical/pharmacy, dental and vision), provides proof of other medical and prescription group health care coverage, and executes a District provided Health Care Coverage Opt Out Form.
- b. Insurance eligible employees who work 32 hours or more per week are eligible for incentive compensation equal to \$325 per month and will be paid to each opt out eligible employee. Insurance eligible 20-31.75 hours per week opt out classified employee compensation will be 87.5% of the full incentive stipend.
- c. Opt out employees can choose to receive the opt out incentive compensation as taxable cash but may elect to contribute the incentive amount to a qualified health care account or retirement account subject to applicable access and contribution limit restrictions.
- d. The District will withhold any applicable payroll tax deductions associated with the opt out employee's allocation of the incentive compensation.
- e. It will be the opt out employee's responsibility to review and comply with any

- applicable health related account of retirement account qualification and contribution limits.
- f. The opt out incentive contributions will be made on a monthly basis and cease for any month in which the District pays a group health care premium under the contract for the employee. If an employee leaves prior to the end of a pay period, their amount will be pro-rated for that month.

Exceptions: If an employee's daily or weekly hours are reduced due to reduction-in-force (RIF), downsizing, or non-disciplinary involuntary transfer related to budget considerations, said employee will be subject to the following provision:

Any employee who has a start date hired prior to July 1st, 2020 who falls under the above exceptions will have their insurance premiums paid at their original rate through June 20th, 2022.

For any employee who has a start date after June 30th, 2020 who falls under the above exceptions will have their insurance premiums paid at their original rate for three (3) months from the time of reduction during the term of this agreement. Upon reaching the fourth (4th) month, the employee will pay the pro-rata insurance premium rate based on their lowered hourly schedule. The intent of this paragraph is to enable those employees who incur reduced hours because of budget reductions, not management decisions, to have time to adjust to the loss of hourly pay, plus the increased pro rata insurance rate.

The District will provide a Section 125 plan at no cost to the employees.

E. EARLY RETIREMENT:

Bargaining unit members who have a minimum of fifteen (15) years of continuous service with the District in a classified position and are on the highest step of the salary schedule, such members may voluntarily elect the option of early retirement. The District will provide a maximum of eighty-four (84) months or until Medicare eligible for medical, dental and vision insurance under the following provisions:

Those employees retiring after June 30, 2011 will receive the same insurance provisions under the same conditions as listed above, but benefit will be for the employee only.

For those not eligible under the above provision, but who quality for full retirement under the Public Employee's Retirement System, may continue the hospital medical insurance at their own expense through group participation until such employees reach Medicare eligibility.

All employees hired after June 30, 2000 will not be eligible for the benefits described in this section.

F. PERS "Pick-Up": The District shall assume and pay a six percent (6%) average employee contribution to the Public Employees Retirement Fund for the employee members participating in the Public Employees Retirement System. Such "pick-up" or payment of employee member monthly contributions to the system shall continue for the life of this Agreement and shall be applicable to employees who first begin to participate in the system on and after the date of the signing of this Agreement to its termination. The full amount of required employee contribution "picked up" or paid by the District on behalf of employees pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered as "salary" within the meaning of ORS 237.003 (8) for the purpose of computing an employee member's "final average salary" within the meaning of ORS 237.003 (12), but shall not be considered as "salary" for the purposes of determining the amount of employee contributions required to be contributed pursuant to ORS 237.971. Such "picked up" or paid employee contributions shall be credited to employee accounts pursuant to ORS 237.071 (2) and shall be considered to be employee contributions for the purposes of ORS 237.001 to 237.320.

ARTICLE 18 PAY PLAN

A. It is agreed that all classified employees in the bargaining unit will be paid on an hourly basis for hours and days worked as reported on timesheets signed by both the employee and the supervisor. Paid legal holidays as outlined in Article 15 of this Agreement shall be paid the hourly wage rate as set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement.

The salary schedule for 2022-2023, 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 are included in Appendix A of the contract.

B. Employees who are eligible for step advances each July 1 shall be granted step increases. However, such step increase may be withheld in the event that the employee is on a plan of improvement when Step movement would ordinarily occur. If the employee fails to successfully complete the plan of improvement, no decision on the missed step movement shall be made until the issue of the plan of improvement is resolved. Should the employee successfully complete the plan of improvement, step increases will be granted retroactive to July 1. In no event, shall an employee be denied the cost of living increase unless they are on an approved leave of absence without pay and upon returning to work all cost of living increases and step increases shall become effective on that date.

Each school year a total of eight (8) working days (nine (9) hours each day) will be allocated to each high school for usage by employees in the following classifications; registrars, bookkeepers, and/or activities secretaries. Each high school principal will allocate these hours in the above referenced classifications at their discretion.

Employees hired after January 1 of any school year will not receive a step increase in July but will continue on their original step until the following year.

Effective July 1, 2022 Step 1 will be removed and a step will be added at the end of the scale with all employees bumped accordingly (resulting in approximately a 3+% increase). A Three (3%) percent progression will be placed between Steps, Steps will increase with a COLA of Two (2%) percent for the 2022-2023 school year.

Effective July 1, 2023 each Step will increase two point five (2.5%) percent for the 2023-2024 school year.

Effective July 1, 2024 each Step will increase two (2%) percent for the 2024-2025 school year.

Both parties agree to exchange proposals for a financial re-opener no later than January 31, 2025.

C. Employees who will complete their 15th year of continuous service with the District before June 30 of the current school year will receive a monthly longevity stipend in the amount of \$40.00. Employees who will complete their 20th year of continuous service with the District before June 30 of the current school year will receive a monthly longevity stipend in the amount of \$60.00.

If an employee is a ten (10) month employee, the additional two (2) months of stipend will be paid on their last paycheck. The stipend may be received annually (paid in December) at the employees discretion. This longevity stipend is in addition to the employees' regular hourly wage. Stipend payment will end immediately upon a break in service. Any employee who receives this benefit, but does not complete the eligibility period, will have an amount equal to the overpayment deducted from their final check.

- D. Length of employment will be rounded off to the nearest year for placement on the step schedule, utilizing July 1 for that purpose.
- E. <u>OUT OF CLASSIFICATION PAY:</u> Any regular employee temporarily assigned by their Principal or Administrator to replace an absent employee who is in a higher classification shall assume all the duties and responsibilities of the assigned position and be considered acting out of classification. Effective on the second (2nd) consecutive working day in the higher classification, the employee shall receive pay at the higher rate to be retroactive to the first day of higher duty.
- F. Employees may annually select to receive their paycheck in ten (10) or twelve (12) monthly checks.

Payday shall by the 20th of the month; unless that day falls on a weekend; in which case, payday shall take place on the preceding Friday. Unless an employee separates from the District at the end of the school year through resignation, retirement or other personnel action; the remaining paychecks will continue throughout July and August unless otherwise requested in writing.

New Bridge staff are unaffected by this change. Staff not assigned to New Bridge will have two options for their summer pay.

- Unless otherwise noted, classified staff members who are not 260-day employees will receive their three paychecks in June, either as a direct deposit or as a paper check; whichever is the usual and recurring method of payroll.
- 2. If a classified staff member chooses, they may notify the District in writing, that they would prefer to receive their checks per the contract language above. In this instance, those classified staff members who are on direct deposit, will receive their July and August checks as paper checks; available for pick up on the regular payday of the month; and if not picked up, the checks will be mailed.

Those classified staff members who indicate in writing this option will revert back to direct deposit beginning with September's payroll.

- G. In the event errors in payroll occur, such errors must be reported in writing, on forms provided by the District, to the Department Supervisor, who shall forward such report to the Payroll Clerk. Overpayment shall be adjusted by mutual agreement between the parties, provided that such overpayment must be adjusted before the end of the school year, or upon termination. Underpayment shall be adjusted within ten (10) days of receipt of the report.
- H. The District agrees to compensate all those who report to work, but who are not put to work, a minimum of two (2) hours at the employee's regular rate of pay. An employee will not be paid if the District gave reasonable notice by radio, television or telephone beforehand. (Supervisor to telephone those who cannot receive radio signals.)
- I. Payroll deductions shall be limited to approved companies; Union sponsored programs, and Section 125 Programs. For a company to be approved there must be at least ten (10) employees signed for deductions for that plan. If the number of employees for a given plan drops below five (5), that plan will no longer be approved for payroll deductions.
- J. The district recognizes that occasionally employees will have circumstances_that may require an advance on their payroll. When this occurs, the following guidelines will be followed:
 - 1. Employees will request the advance in writing through their supervisor to the Superintendent or designee for approval.
 - 2. Payment will not exceed the amount of the net salary earned at the time of the request.
 - 3. Any payroll advance request must be received by the business office by the first Friday of the month and shall be issued no later than 1:00 pm on the second Friday of the month. In the event either Friday is a paid holiday, the request or pay shall be made on the previous workday.
 - 4. Payroll advances will be limited to no more than one (1) in a 3 month period.
- K. Any employee when performing work that requires small scale certification for asbestos-related work or certification for IPM work will receive \$2.00 per hour above their regular classification hourly wage rate. if the employee is asked to do asbestosrelated work that in their determination is not "small scale", they will not be disciplined for refusal to comply with that work order. The employee and the Union President will meet with the District to resolve the issue. The District will pay for all physical examination(s) for any employee who is required to work asbestos-related assignments per Oregon State Law, EPA, DEQ, and AHERA requirements.

L. Special Education Related Student Services: No bargaining unit employee will be ordered to perform "related student services." If a bargaining unit employee accepts a "related student service" assignment, they will receive training by the appropriate health care registered nurse or doctor. Typically, "related student services" tasks are those that an unlicensed individual other than family members may not perform without authorization, training, and supervision by a registered nurse or doctor. (Clean Intermittent Catheterization (CIC) is an example of the above. If a nurse or doctor determines that the health care needs of a particular individual would be best served by such delegation, then an unlicensed trained bargaining unit Education Assistant, ERC Assistant or Multi-Handicapped Assistant can perform the treatment, but only for the specific student on whom the training was conducted, and only according to a specific protocol or checklist for the student being treated.)

The Education Assistant or ERC Education Assistant performing the above duties according to specific protocol, or who is performing "diapering duties" required for students, shall receive \$1.00 per hour extra pay with a minimum of two (2) hours for each day the duties are performed.

K. Mileage:

Employees who are asked to use their personal vehicle for errands while on duty, will be reimbursed at the board approved rate not to exceed the IRS mileage rate. Staff must get prior approval from a building administrator prior to using their personal vehicle for work related errands.

ARTICLE 19 MISCELLANEOUS

CLOTHING REQUIREMENTS: Employees shall dress appropriately for the position in which they are employed. However, the District shall not require specific types of clothing for classified employees. If at any time during the term of this Agreement the District does require specific clothing, the District will provide such clothing. If clothing is provided by the District or a vendor/contractor, it will be clarified at that time if it is required or optional.

ARTICLE 20 HEALTH AND SAFETY

It is agreed by the parties that the District shall maintain a safe and hostile free work environment and that the District shall take immediate corrective action to ensure the safety of all employees. Further, the District shall comply with all provisions of OR-OSHA and that Safety Committees function in accordance with OR-OSHA Administrative rules and that the Union shall appoint its' members to all safety committees.

Any employee, who is required to work in any hazardous situation, shall receive proper training for such duties and/or situations. Training and any associated costs including travel, lodging, per diem and overtime shall be paid for by the district in accordance with state or federal law.

If no safety equipment is available, and/or the employee or employees have not received performance training, that employee(s) shall not be required to perform said duties.

In the event any bargaining unit employee suffers an injury due to attack, assault, overt physical act of violence, or inappropriate physical contact by a student of the District, the employee shall not be required to work with that student until such time that the employee, Union representative and building principal have met and conferred and reached a reasonable solution to the issue. An employee shall not be considered to be insubordinate if she/he refuses to follow an order that would endanger the health or safety of the student, employee, or any other person.

Any incidents as described in the preceding sections shall be reported to the Safety Committee.

ARTICLE 21 SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be determined by any such tribunal, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby; and upon request of either the Board or the Union, the parties shall enter into negotiations for the purpose of attempting to arrive at a mutual satisfactory replacement for such invalidated provision; provided, however, that the provision pertaining to strikes and work stoppages shall continue in full force and effect even though a satisfactory replacement is not achieved.

ARTICLE 22 STANDING COMMITTEES

- A. SITE COMMITTEE: All Site Committees will have at least two (2) classified employees on the Site Committee. If two (2) classified staff are not interested in serving, the committee will revert back to the minimum of one (1) classified staff member. This employee will be elected in a method and manner as determined by the classified employees of that building.
- B. LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: The parties agree to maintain regular communications through Labor-Management meetings with the intent of addressing employee/employer issues as they relate to the collective bargaining agreement and workplace concerns. The parties shall mutually develop the specific functions and membership of the Labor-Management Committee.
- C. INSURANCE COMMITTEE: An on-going insurance committee shall be established to review insurance coverage and prices to keep limits on spending and promote cost effective use of the insurance benefit package. The Insurance Committee shall consist of at least five (5) members: three (3) appointed by OSEA Chapter 22 and two (2) by the Superintendent. The insurance benefits shall be selected by OSEA Chapter 22.
- D. HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE: It is agreed by the parties that the District shall maintain a safe and hostile free work environment and that the District shall take immediate corrective action to ensure the safety of all employees. Further, the District shall comply with all provisions of OR-OSHA and that Safety Committees function in accordance with OR-OSHA Administration rules and that the Union shall appoint its members to all safety committees.
- E. CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE: The Classification Review Committee is constituted for the purpose of reviewing employee re-classification requests and shall comply with the following guidelines:
 - 1. The Committee shall be established by September 30 of each year
 - 2. The Committee shall be comprised of three (3) classified employees chosen by OSEA and three (3) representatives chosen by the District.
 - Classified employees serving on this Committee shall not review their own reclassification requests
 - 4. The Committee shall meet quarterly per year. If there are no reclassification requests the committee will not meet.
 - The Committee shall use the OSEA Position Review Guidelines Flowchart (Appendix D) as the process for determining re-classification decisions. Any other committee procedures will be determined mutually by the parties during the meeting.

ARTICLE 23 RETIRE/REHIRE EMPLOYEES

For employees who retire and upon notification to the District of an employee's intent to retire on a specific date, the employee or the District may request in writing that they be re-hired into their former position effective not more than five (5) working days from the date of separation by retirement. In the event both parties agree, a separation agreement shall be executed and shall include the following as part of the agreement:

- 1. The date of retirement including the position retiring from;
- 2. The effective date of re-hire;
- 3. That the employee may not work more than 1039 hours in a calendar year unless the statutory limit is increased;
- 4. That the employee will be placed their step-achieved on the date of retirement from the District.
- 5. That the employee will remain in the bargaining unit and covered by all Articles therein with the exception of the Layoff and Recall Article, PERS, and Health Insurance should the employee work less than half time;
- 6. That this employment relationship shall not exceed one (1) school year in duration; except upon mutual agreement of the District and the Union. Absent mutual agreement the employee may be hired into a different vacated position for which they are qualified subject to the same limitations as above.

EARLY RETIREMENT:

Bargaining unit members who have a minimum of fifteen (15) years of continuous service with the District in a classified position and are on the highest step of the salary schedule, such members may voluntarily elect the option of early retirement. The District will provide a maximum of eighty-four (84) months or until Medicare eligible for medical, dental and vision insurance under the following provisions:

Employees who meet the criteria established in the first paragraph and retire before June 30, 2011 will receive the same provisions and cap, as that provided bargaining unit members.

Those employees retiring after June 30, 2011 will receive the same insurance provisions under the same conditions as listed above, but benefit will be for the employee only.

For those not eligible under the above provision, but who quality for full retirement under the Public Employee's Retirement System, may continue the hospital medical

insurance at their own expense through group participation until such employees reach Medicare eligibility.

All employees hired after June 30, 2000 will not be eligible for the benefits described in this section.

ARTICLE 24 TERM OF AGREEMENT

- A. It is agreed that this successor agreement shall be effective from July 1, 22 and expire on June 30, 25.
- B. This Agreement shall automatically be renewed from year to year and shall be binding for additional periods of one year unless either the Board or the Union gives written notice to the other not later than February 28, 2023, 2024 or 2025 of its desire to modify the Agreement for a successive term.
- C. MODIFICATION: This Agreement constitutes the full and complete Agreement between the parties. Each party agrees that it had the opportunity to negotiate over any legal subject of bargaining. Neither party shall be obligated to engage in any further negotiations unless specifically provided for within this Agreement or except by mutual agreement of the parties. No such negotiated agreement, if any, shall be binding unless ratified by the members of the parties to this Agreement and reduced to writing and executed by their authorized representatives.
- D. The parties recognize that revenue needed to fund the compensation provided by this agreement is contingent upon the state funding and distribution formula, plus other District revenues as allowed and provided for by law. The District agrees to budget annually the full amount necessary to fund this Agreement. In the event the District, through no fault of its own, is unable to meet the financial obligations set forth herein during the life of this Agreement, the parties may re-open this Agreement to negotiate wages and/or hours. It would be the goal of these negotiations to find creative solutions to revenue shortfalls prior to reducing wages or laying-off any bargaining unit member.
- E. Language articles and economic provisions, other than Article 18 and Appendix A, will be bargained under successor bargaining. Both parties will identify language articles that each party is interested in bargaining during re-opener bargaining no later than January 15, 2025.

Sections of the contract not subject to successor bargaining or re-openers include Article 18 – Pay Plan and Appendix A – Salary Schedules.

EXECUTION OF SIGNATURES

Executed thisday of_, in Murphy, Oregonal Rivers/Josephine County School Board on be School District, and by Chapter 22, Oregon School of the Josephine County School Distriction	half of the Three Rivers/Josephine County school Employees Association (OSEA), on
OSEA CHAPTER 22 DON MANION	DATE
THREE RIVERS SCHOOL DISTRICT JEN JOHNSTUN	DATE
SUPERINTENDENT DAVID VALENZUELA	DATE
OSEA FIELD REPRESENTATIVE SARA EVANS	DATE

APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE

	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23	22-23
CLASSIFICATION	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9
FOOD SERVICES									
FS MANAGER IV	19.63	20.21	20.82	21.44	22.09	22.75	23.43	24.14	24.86
FS MANAGER III	18.63	19.19	19.76	20.35	20.97	21.59	22.24	22.91	23.60
FS MANAGER II	17.61	18.14	18.68	19.24	19.82	20.41	21.02	21.66	22.31
FS MANAGER I	16.77	17.27	17.79	18.32	18.87	19.44	20.02	20.62	21.24
FS II	14.98	15.43	15.89	16.37	16.86	17.37	17.89	18.43	18.98
FS I	14.18	14.61	15.05	15.50	15.96	16.44	16.94	17.44	17.97
SAFETY									
CAMPUS MONITOR	14.72	15.16	15.62	16.08	16.57	17.06	17.58	18.10	18.65
STUDENT LIAISON									
FAMILY ADVOCATE	16.12	16.60	17.10	17.61	18.14	18.68	19.24	19.82	20.42
INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT									
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE	25.85	26.63	27.42	28.25	29.09	29.97	30.87	31.79	32.75
SP PATHOLOGY	22.97	22.66	24.26	25.40	25.05	20.02	27.42	20.25	20.00
ASST/CERTIFIED NURSE ASST STUDENT RETENTION	22.97	23.66	24.36	25.10	25.85	26.62	27.42	28.25	29.09
ASSISTANT	20.09	20.69	21.31	21.95	22.61	23.29	23.99	24.71	25.45
MULTI-HANDICAPPED ED ASST	17.70	18.23	18.78	19.34	19.92	20.52	21.14	21.77	22.43
ELL EDUCATION ASSISTANT	17.35	17.87	18.40	18.95	19.52	20.11	20.71	21.33	21.97
ERC EDUCATION ASSISTANT	16.27	16.76	17.26	17.78	18.32	18.87	19.43	20.01	20.62
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.19	16.68	17.18	17.69	18.22	18.77	19.33	19.91	20.51
EDUCATION ASSISTANT-									
Regular & Schoolwide	15.58	16.05	16.53	17.03	17.54	18.06	18.60	19.16	19.74
MEDIA									
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER III	18.70	19.26	19.84	20.43	21.05	21.68	22.33	23.00	23.69
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER II	17.92	18.46	19.01	19.59	20.17	20.78	21.40	22.04	22.70
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER I	17.11	17.63	18.16	18.70	19.26	19.84	20.44	21.05	21.68
SUPPORT SERVICES									
SUPPORT SERVICES COORDINATOR	23.33	24.03	24.75	25.50	26.26	27.05	27.86	28.70	29.56
SUPPORT SERVICES	23.33	24.03	24.73	25.50	20.20	27.03	27.80	20.70	23.30
ASSISTANTS									
PRINT SERVICES ASSISTANT	19.63	20.21	20.82	21.44	22.09	22.75	23.43	24.14	24.86
DELIVERY CLERK	19.63	20.21	20.82	21.44	22.09	22.75	23.43	24.14	24.86
COURIER	17.15	17.66	18.19	18.74	19.30	19.88	20.47	21.09	21.72
CLERICAL SUPPORT									
SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
COORDINATOR	25.88	26.65	27.45	28.28	29.12	30.00	30.90	31.82	32.78

OFFICE MANAGER IV 20.59 21.21 21.85 22.50 23.18 23.87 24.59 25.33 26.09 OFFICE MANAGER III 20.14 20.74 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.77 25.51 OFFICE MANAGER III 20.14 20.74 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.77 25.51 OFFICE MANAGER III 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.39 SECRETARY II 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY II 16.34 16.83 17.33 17.85 18.39 18.94 19.51 20.09 20.70 OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIAL PROGRAMS YOUTH TRANSTION PROGRAM YOUTH TRANSTION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.43 23.50 24.05 24.79	SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
OFFICE MANAGER III 20.14 20.74 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.77 25.51 OFFICE MANAGER II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 SECRETARY II - RECEPTIONIST 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY II 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY II 16.34 16.83 17.33 17.85 18.39 18.94 19.51 20.09 20.70 OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIAL PROGRAM SPECIALS PROGRAM SPECIALS TO SECRETARY II 20.22 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 PISCAL SERVICES ACCOUNTING CLERK II 8.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAN II 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 24.79 25.74 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 17.70 18.29 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 17.70 18.29 19.79 20.39 20.00 20.20 23.89 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR SILLED 23.38 24.85 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 25.33 24.80 25.55 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 32.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 32.31 32.22 22.35 22	SECRETARY	22.77	23.45	24.15	24.88	25.62	26.39	27.18	28.00	28.84
OFFICE MANAGER 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93	OFFICE MANAGER IV	20.59	21.21	21.85	22.50	23.18	23.87	24.59	25.33	26.09
SECRETARY II - RECEPTIONIST 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY II 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY II 16.34 16.83 17.33 17.85 18.39 18.94 19.51 20.09 20.70 OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIAL PROGRAMS YOUTH TRANSTITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 FISCAL SERVICES ACCOUNTING CLERK III 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 EVALUATION OF SECRETARY II 18.00 18.54 19.09 20.30 20.3	OFFICE MANAGER III	20.14	20.74	21.37	22.01	22.67	23.35	24.05	24.77	25.51
SECRETARY II 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 SECRETARY I 16.34 16.83 17.33 17.85 18.39 18.94 19.51 20.09 20.70 OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIAL PROGRAMS VOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 PRISCAL SERVICES ACCOUNTING CLERK II 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.99 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 18.67 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 20.75 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.99 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - SMILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SMILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 EVILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 EVILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 EVILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 EVILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 EVILLED MAI	OFFICE MANAGER II	19.68	20.27	20.88	21.50	22.15	22.81	23.50	24.20	24.93
SECRETARY I 16.34 16.83 17.33 17.85 18.39 18.94 19.51 20.09 20.70 OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIAL PROGRAMS YOUTH TRANSTION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 FISCAL SERVICES ***ACCOUNTING CLERK III 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK III 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES **HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 25.54 CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN II 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 ***MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMILED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMILED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMILED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMILED 24.88 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 ***ECHNICH MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 ***ECHNICH MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 ***ECHNICLOGY SERVICES ***SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.88 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 33.92 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK 25.91 MICH SALTA S	SECRETARY II - RECEPTIONIST	17.35	17.87	18.40	18.95	19.52	20.11	20.71	21.33	21.97
OFFICE CLERK 15.99 16.47 16.96 17.47 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 SPECIALS PROGRAMS YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 FISCAL SERVICES ACCOUNTING CLERK III 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK II 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.79 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.35 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICION SCORDINATOR 32.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.75 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 33.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK 150.00 13.00 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 50.00 30.91	SECRETARY II	17.35	17.87	18.40	18.95	19.52	20.11	20.71	21.33	21.97
SPECIAL PROGRAMS YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 FISCAL SERVICES	SECRETARY I	16.34	16.83	17.33	17.85	18.39	18.94	19.51	20.09	20.70
YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60 27.60 EISCAL SERVICES ACCOUNTING CLERK III 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK I 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 24.70 24.78 25.50 26.47 EACOUNTING CLERK I 18.00 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 EACOUNTION III 20.95 EACOUNTION III	OFFICE CLERK	15.99	16.47	16.96	17.47	18.00	18.54	19.09	19.67	20.26
SPECIALIST 21.79 22.44 23.12 23.81 24.52 25.26 26.02 26.80 27.60	SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
ACCOUNTING CLERK III 20.32 20.93 21.56 22.20 22.87 23.55 24.26 24.99 25.74 ACCOUNTING CLERK I 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK	YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM SPECIALIST	21.79	22.44	23.12	23.81	24.52	25.26	26.02	26.80	27.60
ACCOUNTING CLERK I 18.00 18.54 19.09 19.67 20.26 20.86 21.49 22.13 22.80 BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN I 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN I 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.08 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMILSKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMISKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICLE WITCH MINITENANCE 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK 25.09 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	FISCAL SERVICES									
BOOKKEEPER 16.78 17.28 17.80 18.33 18.88 19.45 20.03 20.63 21.25 CUSTODIAL SERVICES HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN I 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE SERVICES MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICIO SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK	ACCOUNTING CLERK III	20.32	20.93	21.56	22.20	22.87	23.55	24.26	24.99	25.74
CUSTODIAL SERVICES	ACCOUNTING CLERK I	18.00	18.54	19.09	19.67	20.26	20.86	21.49	22.13	22.80
HEAD CUSTODIAN IV 20.90 21.52 22.17 22.83 23.52 24.22 24.95 25.70 26.47 HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN I 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 44.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK	BOOKKEEPER	16.78	17.28	17.80	18.33	18.88	19.45	20.03	20.63	21.25
HEAD CUSTODIAN III 20.75 21.37 22.01 22.67 23.35 24.05 24.78 25.52 26.28 HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN I 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE SERVICES	CUSTODIAL SERVICES									
HEAD CUSTODIAN II 19.68 20.27 20.88 21.50 22.15 22.81 23.50 24.20 24.93 HEAD CUSTODIAN I 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64 CUSTODIAN 17.70 18.23 18.78 19.34 19.92 20.52 21.14 21.77 22.43 MAINTENANCE SERVICES MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	HEAD CUSTODIAN IV	20.90	21.52	22.17	22.83	23.52	24.22	24.95	25.70	26.47
HEAD CUSTODIAN 18.66 19.22 19.79 20.39 21.00 21.63 22.28 22.95 23.64	HEAD CUSTODIAN III	20.75	21.37	22.01	22.67	23.35	24.05	24.78	25.52	26.28
MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96	HEAD CUSTODIAN II	19.68	20.27	20.88	21.50	22.15	22.81	23.50	24.20	24.93
MAINTENANCE SERVICES MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINTENANCE - WATER TECHNICIAN 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE	HEAD CUSTODIAN I	18.66	19.22	19.79	20.39	21.00	21.63	22.28	22.95	23.64
MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 24.18 24.91 25.66	CUSTODIAN	17.70	18.23	18.78	19.34	19.92	20.52	21.14	21.77	22.43
COORDINATOR 32.34 33.31 34.31 35.34 36.40 37.49 38.61 39.77 40.96 MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18	MAINTENANCE SERVICES									
MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC 28.45 29.30 30.18 31.09 32.02 32.98 33.97 34.99 36.04 MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS	32 34	33 31	34 31	35 34	36 40	37 49	38 61	39 77	40 96
MAINT-WASTE WATER 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTO										
MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED 25.00 25.75 26.53 27.32 28.14 28.99 29.86 30.75 31.67 MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18	MAINT-WASTE WATER									
MAINTENANCE - SKILLED 23.38 24.08 24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED 20.89 21.51 22.16 22.82 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	MAINTENANCE - MULTI	25.00	23.73	20.55	27.52	20.14	20.55	25.00	30.73	31.07
MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.51 24.21 24.94 25.69 26.46 MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18	SKILLED	25.00	25.75	26.53	27.32	28.14	28.99	29.86	30.75	31.67
MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/iOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	MAINTENANCE - SKILLED	23.38	24.08	24.80	25.54	26.31	27.10	27.91	28.75	29.61
LABOR 20.31 20.92 21.54 22.19 22.86 23.54 24.25 24.98 25.73 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT AMECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK 40.45 40.	MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED	20.89	21.51	22.16	22.82	23.51	24.21	24.94	25.69	26.46
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC COMPUTER NETWORK COMPUTER NETWORK	MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR	20.31	20.92	21.54	22.19	22.86	23.54	24.25	24.98	25.73
MECHANIC 24.18 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 28.04 28.88 29.74 30.64 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK 40.45	VEHICLE MAINTENANCE									
SYSTEMS ANALYST 46.38 47.78 49.21 50.69 52.21 53.77 55.38 57.05 58.76 DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC	24.18	24.91	25.66	26.43	27.22	28.04	28.88	29.74	30.64
DESKTOP COORDINATOR 35.94 37.02 38.13 39.27 40.45 41.67 42.92 44.20 45.53 COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/iOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	TECHNOLOGY SERVICES									
COMPUTER NETWORK 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18	SYSTEMS ANALYST	46.38	47.78	49.21	50.69	52.21	53.77	55.38	57.05	58.76
TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC 30.93 31.86 32.81 33.80 34.81 35.86 36.93 38.04 39.18 COMPUTER NETWORK	DESKTOP COORDINATOR	35.94	37.02	38.13	39.27	40.45	41.67	42.92	44.20	45.53
COMPUTER NETWORK	COMPUTER NETWORK	20.02	21.00	22.01	22.00	24.04	25.00	26.02	20.04	20.10
		30.93	31.80	32.81	33.80	34.81	35.86	30.93	38.04	39.18
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	TECHNICIAN II	28.45	29.30	30.18	31.09	32.02	32.98	33.97	34.99	36.04

COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN I	26.40	27.19	28.01	28.85	29.72	30.61	31.52	32.47	33.44
COMPUTER TECH ASST	18.42	18.97	19.54	20.12	20.73	21.35	21.99	22.65	23.33
NEW BRIDGE									
CORRECTIONAL ERC ED									
ASSISTANT	18.59	19.14	19.72	20.31	20.92	21.55	22.19	22.86	23.54
OFFICE MANAGER IV- NEW									
BRIDGE	20.59	21.21	21.85	22.50	23.18	23.87	24.59	25.33	26.09
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.19	16.68	17.18	17.69	18.22	18.77	19.33	19.91	20.51

	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24	23-24
CLASSIFICATION	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9
FOOD SERVICES									
FS MANAGER IV	20.12	20.72	21.34	21.98	22.64	23.32	24.02	24.74	25.48
FS MANAGER III	19.09	19.67	20.26	20.86	21.49	22.13	22.80	23.48	24.19
FS MANAGER II	18.05	18.59	19.15	19.72	20.31	20.92	21.55	22.20	22.86
FS MANAGER I	17.19	17.70	18.23	18.78	19.34	19.92	20.52	21.14	21.77
FS II	15.36	15.82	16.29	16.78	17.28	17.80	18.34	18.89	19.45
FS I	14.54	14.97	15.42	15.89	16.36	16.85	17.36	17.88	18.42
SAFETY									
CAMPUS MONITOR	15.09	15.54	16.01	16.49	16.98	17.49	18.01	18.55	19.11
STUDENT LIAISON									
FAMILY ADVOCATE	16.52	17.01	17.53	18.05	18.59	19.15	19.72	20.32	20.93
INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT									
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE	26.50	27.29	28.11	28.95	29.82	30.72	31.64	32.59	33.56
SP PATHOLOGY ASST/CERTIFIED									
NURSE ASST	23.54	24.25	24.97	25.72	26.49	27.29	28.11	28.95	29.82
STUDENT RETENTION ASSISTANT	20.59	21.21	21.84	22.50	23.17	23.87	24.59	25.32	26.08
MULTI-HANDICAPPED ED ASST	18.15	18.69	19.25	19.83	20.42	21.04	21.67	22.32	22.99
ELL EDUCATION ASSISTANT	17.78	18.31	18.86	19.43	20.01	20.61	21.23	21.87	22.52
ERC EDUCATION ASSISTANT	16.68	17.18	17.70	18.23	18.77	19.34	19.92	20.52	21.13
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.59	17.09	17.61	18.13	18.68	19.24	19.81	20.41	21.02
EDUCATION ASSISTANT-Regular & SW	15.97	16.45	16.94	17.45	17.97	18.51	19.07	19.64	20.23
MEDIA	13.37	10.13	10.51	17.13	17.37	10.31	13.07	13.01	20.23
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER III	19.17	19.74	20.34	20.95	21.57	22.22	22.89	23.57	24.28
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER II	18.37	18.92	19.49	20.07	20.68	21.30	21.94	22.59	23.27
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER I	17.54	18.07	18.61	19.17	19.74	20.34	20.95	21.57	22.22
	17.54	10.07	10.01	15.17	13.74	20.34	20.93	21.57	22.22
SUPPORT SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES									
COORDINATOR	23.92	24.63	25.37	26.13	26.92	27.73	28.56	29.42	30.30
SUPPORT SERVICES ASSISTANTS									
PRINT SERVICES ASSISTANT	20.12	20.72	21.34	21.98	22.64	23.32	24.02	24.74	25.48
DELIVERY CLERK	20.12	20.72	21.34	21.98	22.64	23.32	24.02	24.74	25.48
COURIER	17.57	18.10	18.64	19.20	19.78	20.37	20.98	21.61	22.26
CLERICAL SUPPORT									
SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
COORDINATOR	26.52	27.32	28.14	28.98	29.85	30.75	31.67	32.62	33.60
SPECIAL PROGRAMS SECRETARY	23.34	24.04	24.76	25.50	26.26	27.05	27.86	28.70	29.56

OFFICE MANAGER IV	21.11	21.74	22.39	23.06	23.76	24.47	25.20	25.96	26.74
OFFICE MANAGER III	20.64	21.26	21.90	22.56	23.23	23.93	24.65	25.39	26.15
OFFICE MANAGER II	20.17	20.77	21.40	22.04	22.70	23.38	24.08	24.81	25.55
SECRETARY II - RECEPTIONIST	17.78	18.31	18.86	19.43	20.01	20.61	21.23	21.87	22.52
SECRETARY II	17.78	18.31	18.86	19.43	20.01	20.61	21.23	21.87	22.52
SECRETARY I	16.75	17.25	17.77	18.30	18.85	19.41	19.99	20.59	21.21
OFFICE CLERK	16.39	16.88	17.39	17.91	18.45	19.00	19.57	20.16	20.76
SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM	22.22	22.00	22.60	24.44	25.44	25.00	26.67	27.47	20.20
SPECIALIST	22.33	23.00	23.69	24.41	25.14	25.89	26.67	27.47	28.29
FISCAL SERVICES									
ACCOUNTING CLERK III	20.83	21.45	22.09	22.76	23.44	24.14	24.87	25.61	26.38
ACCOUNTING CLERK I	18.45	19.00	19.57	20.16	20.76	21.38	22.03	22.69	23.37
BOOKKEEPER	17.20	17.71	18.24	18.79	19.36	19.94	20.53	21.15	21.79
CUSTODIAL SERVICES									
HEAD CUSTODIAN IV	21.42	22.06	22.72	23.40	24.11	24.83	25.58	26.34	27.13
HEAD CUSTODIAN III	21.27	21.91	22.56	23.24	23.94	24.66	25.40	26.16	26.94
HEAD CUSTODIAN II	20.17	20.77	21.40	22.04	22.70	23.38	24.08	24.81	25.55
HEAD CUSTODIAN I	19.13	19.70	20.29	20.90	21.53	22.17	22.84	23.52	24.23
CUSTODIAN	18.15	18.69	19.25	19.83	20.42	21.04	21.67	22.32	22.99
MAINTENANCE SERVICES									
MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS	22.45	24.44	25.46	26.22	27.24	20.42	20.50	40.77	41.99
COORDINATOR	33.15	34.14	35.16	36.22	37.31	38.43	39.58	40.77	<i>A</i> 1 44
	20.46	20.04	20.04	24.07	22.02	22.04	24.02		
MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC	29.16	30.04	30.94	31.87	32.82	33.81	34.82	35.86	36.94
MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN	29.16 25.63	30.04 26.40	30.94 27.19	31.87 28.01	32.82 28.85	33.81	34.82 30.60		
MAINT-WASTE WATER								35.86	36.94
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN	25.63	26.40	27.19	28.01	28.85	29.71	30.60	35.86 31.52	36.94 32.47
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED	25.63 25.63	26.40 26.40 24.68	27.19 27.19 25.42	28.01 28.01 26.18	28.85 28.85 26.97	29.71 29.71 27.78	30.60 30.60 28.61	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED	25.63 25.63 23.96	26.40 26.40	27.19 27.19	28.01 28.01	28.85 28.85	29.71 29.71	30.60 30.60	35.86 31.52 31.52	36.94 32.47 32.47
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR COMPUTER NETWORK	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82 24.67 47.54 36.84	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44 25.41 48.97 37.94	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08 26.17 50.44 39.08	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75 26.96 51.95 40.26	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43 27.76 53.51 41.46	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13 28.60 55.12 42.71	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86 29.46 56.77 43.99	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60 30.34 58.47 45.31	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37 31.25 60.23 46.67
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82 24.67	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44 25.41	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08 26.17	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75 26.96	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43 27.76	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13 28.60	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86 29.46	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60 30.34	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37 31.25
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR COMPUTER NETWORK	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82 24.67 47.54 36.84	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44 25.41 48.97 37.94	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08 26.17 50.44 39.08	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75 26.96 51.95 40.26	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43 27.76 53.51 41.46	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13 28.60 55.12 42.71	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86 29.46 56.77 43.99	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60 30.34 58.47 45.31	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37 31.25 60.23 46.67
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/IOS MAC COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III COMPUTER NETWORK	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82 24.67 47.54 36.84 31.70 29.16	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44 25.41 48.97 37.94 32.65 30.04	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08 26.17 50.44 39.08 33.63 30.94	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75 26.96 51.95 40.26 34.64 31.87	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43 27.76 53.51 41.46 35.68 32.82	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13 28.60 55.12 42.71 36.75 33.81	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86 29.46 56.77 43.99 37.85 34.82	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60 30.34 58.47 45.31 38.99 35.86	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37 31.25 60.23 46.67 40.16 36.94
MAINT-WASTE WATER TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SKILLED MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MECHANIC TECHNOLOGY SERVICES SYSTEMS ANALYST DESKTOP COORDINATOR COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN III/iOS MAC COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN II	25.63 25.63 23.96 21.41 20.82 24.67 47.54 36.84 31.70	26.40 26.40 24.68 22.05 21.44 25.41 48.97 37.94 32.65	27.19 27.19 25.42 22.71 22.08 26.17 50.44 39.08 33.63	28.01 28.01 26.18 23.39 22.75 26.96 51.95 40.26 34.64	28.85 28.85 26.97 24.09 23.43 27.76 53.51 41.46 35.68	29.71 29.71 27.78 24.82 24.13 28.60 55.12 42.71 36.75	30.60 30.60 28.61 25.56 24.86 29.46 56.77 43.99 37.85	35.86 31.52 31.52 29.47 26.33 25.60 30.34 58.47 45.31 38.99	36.94 32.47 32.47 30.35 27.12 26.37 31.25 60.23 46.67 40.16

NEW BRIDGE									
CORRECTIONAL ERC ED									
ASSISTANT	19.05	19.62	20.21	20.82	21.44	22.08	22.75	23.43	24.13
OFFICE MANAGER IV- NEW									
BRIDGE	21.11	21.74	22.39	23.06	23.76	24.47	25.20	25.96	26.74
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.59	17.09	17.61	18.13	18.68	19.24	19.81	20.41	21.02

	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25	24-25
CLASSIFICATION	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9
FOOD SERVICES									
FS MANAGER IV	20.52	21.13	21.77	22.42	23.09	23.79	24.50	25.23	25.99
FS MANAGER III	19.47	20.06	20.66	21.28	21.92	22.58	23.25	23.95	24.67
FS MANAGER II	18.41	18.96	19.53	20.12	20.72	21.34	21.98	22.64	23.32
FS MANAGER I	17.53	18.06	18.60	19.16	19.73	20.32	20.93	21.56	22.21
FS II	15.66	16.13	16.62	17.12	17.63	18.16	18.70	19.26	19.84
FS I	14.83	15.27	15.73	16.20	16.69	17.19	17.71	18.24	18.78
SAFETY									
CAMPUS MONITOR	15.39	15.85	16.33	16.82	17.32	17.84	18.37	18.93	19.49
STUDENT LIAISON									
FAMILY ADVOCATE	16.85	17.35	17.88	18.41	18.96	19.53	20.12	20.72	21.34
INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT									
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE	27.03	27.84	28.68	29.54	30.42	31.34	32.28	33.24	34.24
SP PATHOLOGY ASST/CERTIFIED	24.24	24 = 2	25.45	26.24	27.00	27.04	20.57	20.70	20.15
NURSE ASST	24.01	24.73	25.47	26.24	27.02	27.84	28.67	29.53	30.42
STUDENT RETENTION ASSISTANT	21.00	21.63	22.28	22.95	23.64	24.35	25.08	25.83	26.60
MULTI-HANDICAPPED ED ASST	18.51	19.06	19.64	20.22	20.83	21.46	22.10	22.76	23.45
ELL EDUCATION ASSISTANT	18.13	18.68	19.24	19.82	20.41	21.02	21.65	22.30	22.97
ERC EDUCATION ASSISTANT	17.01	17.52	18.05	18.59	19.15	19.72	20.32	20.93	21.55
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.93	17.43	17.96	18.50	19.05	19.62	20.21	20.82	21.44
EDUCATION ASSISTANT-Regular & SW	16.29	16.78	17.28	17.80	18.33	18.88	19.45	20.03	20.63
MEDIA									
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER III	19.55	20.14	20.74	21.36	22.01	22.67	23.35	24.05	24.77
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER II	18.74	19.30	19.88	20.48	21.09	21.72	22.38	23.05	23.74
SCHOOL LIBRARY MANAGER I	17.89	18.43	18.98	19.55	20.14	20.74	21.37	22.01	22.67
	17.03	10.45	10.90	15.55	20.14	20.74	21.57	22.01	22.07
SUPPORT SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES									
COORDINATOR	24.40	25.13	25.88	26.66	27.46	28.28	29.13	30.00	30.90
SUPPORT SERVICES ASSISTANTS									
PRINT SERVICES ASSISTANT	20.52	21.13	21.77	22.42	23.09	23.79	24.50	25.23	25.99
DELIVERY CLERK	20.52	21.13	21.77	22.42	23.09	23.79	24.50	25.23	25.99
COURIER	17.93	18.46	19.02	19.59	20.18	20.78	21.40	22.05	22.71
CLERICAL SUPPORT									
SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
COORDINATOR	27.05	27.87	28.70	29.56	30.45	31.36	32.30	33.27	34.27
SPECIAL PROGRAMS SECRETARY	23.80	24.52	25.25	26.01	26.79	27.59	28.42	29.27	30.15

	24.52	22.47	22.04	22.52	24.22	24.06	25.74	26.40	27.27
OFFICE MANAGER IV	21.53	22.17	22.84	23.52	24.23	24.96	25.71	26.48	27.27
OFFICE MANAGER III	21.06	21.69	22.34	23.01	23.70	24.41	25.14	25.90	26.67
OFFICE MANAGER II	20.57	21.19	21.83	22.48	23.16	23.85	24.57	25.30	26.06
SECRETARY II - RECEPTIONIST	18.13	18.68	19.24	19.82	20.41	21.02	21.65	22.30	22.97
SECRETARY II	18.13	18.68	19.24	19.82	20.41	21.02	21.65	22.30	22.97
SECRETARY I	17.08	17.59	18.12	18.66	19.22	19.80	20.39	21.01	21.64
OFFICE CLERK	16.72	17.22	17.74	18.27	18.82	19.38	19.96	20.56	21.18
SPECIAL PROGRAMS									
YOUTH TRANSITION PROGRAM	22.78	23.46	24.17	24.89	25.64	26.41	27.20	28.02	28.86
SPECIALIST	22.78	23.40	24.17	24.89	25.04	20.41	27.20	28.02	28.80
FISCAL SERVICES	24.24	24.00	22.54	22.24	22.04	24.62	25.27	26.42	26.04
ACCOUNTING CLERK III	21.24	21.88	22.54	23.21	23.91	24.63	25.37	26.13	26.91
ACCOUNTING CLERK I	18.82	19.38	19.96	20.56	21.18	21.81	22.47	23.14	23.84
BOOKKEEPER	17.54	18.07	18.61	19.17	19.74	20.34	20.95	21.57	22.22
CUSTODIAL SERVICES									
HEAD CUSTODIAN IV	21.85	22.50	23.18	23.87	24.59	25.33	26.09	26.87	27.68
HEAD CUSTODIAN III	21.69	22.34	23.01	23.71	24.42	25.15	25.90	26.68	27.48
HEAD CUSTODIAN II	20.57	21.19	21.83	22.48	23.16	23.85	24.57	25.30	26.06
HEAD CUSTODIAN I	19.51	20.09	20.70	21.32	21.96	22.61	23.29	23.99	24.71
CUSTODIAN	18.51	19.06	19.64	20.22	20.83	21.46	22.10	22.76	23.45
MAINTENANCE SERVICES									
MAINTENANCE - OPERATIONS	22.04	24.02	25.07	26.04	20.05	20.40	40.07	44.50	42.00
COORDINATOR	33.81	34.82	35.87	36.94	38.05	39.19	40.37	41.58	42.83
MAINTENANCE - HVAC/DDC MAINT-WASTE WATER	29.74	30.64	31.56	32.50	33.48	34.48	35.52	36.58	37.68
TECHNICIAN	26.14	26.93	27.73	28.57	29.42	30.31	31.21	32.15	33.12
MAINTENANCE - MULTI SKILLED	26.14	26.93	27.73	28.57	29.42	30.31	31.21	32.15	33.12
MAINTENANCE - SKILLED	24.44	25.17	25.93	26.71	27.51	28.33	29.18	30.06	30.96
MAINTENANCE - SEMI SKILLED	21.84	22.49	23.17	23.86	24.58	25.31	26.07	26.86	27.66
MAINTENANCE - GENERAL LABOR	21.23	21.87	22.53	23.20	23.90	24.61	25.35	26.11	26.90
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE	21.23	21.07	22.33	23.20	23.30	24.01	23.33	20.11	20.30
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT									
MECHANIC	25.16	25.92	26.69	27.50	28.32	29.17	30.04	30.95	31.87
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES									
SYSTEMS ANALYST	48.49	49.95	51.45	52.99	54.58	56.22	57.90	59.64	61.43
DESKTOP COORDINATOR	37.58	38.70	39.86	41.06	42.29	43.56	44.87	46.21	47.60
COMPUTER NETWORK				0.5.5		a= :-			
TECHNICIAN III/iOS MAC	32.34	33.31	34.31	35.34	36.40	37.49	38.61	39.77	40.96
COMPUTER NETWORK TECHNICIAN II	29.74	30.64	31.56	32.50	33.48	34.48	35.52	36.58	37.68
COMPUTER NETWORK				3 0					- 1130
TECHNICIAN I	27.60	28.43	29.28	30.16	31.07	32.00	32.96	33.95	34.97
COMPUTER TECH ASST	19.25	19.83	20.43	21.04	21.67	22.32	22.99	23.68	24.39

NEW BRIDGE									
CORRECTIONAL ERC ED									
ASSISTANT	19.43	20.01	20.61	21.23	21.87	22.53	23.20	23.90	24.61
OFFICE MANAGER IV- NEW									
BRIDGE	21.63	22.28	22.95	23.64	24.35	25.08	25.83	26.61	27.41
COLLEGE & CAREER ADVOCATE	16.93	17.43	17.96	18.50	19.05	19.62	20.21	20.82	21.44

APPENDIX B - EXTRA DUTY SALARY SCHEDULE

THREE RIVERS SCHOOL DISTRICT

Extra Duty Salary Schedule

	Year	Year	Year	Year	Year
Group	1	2	3	4	5
Α	707	786	864	943	1021
В	1022	1100	1179	1257	1336
С	1336	1414	1493	1571	1650
D	1650	1729	1807	1886	1964
E	2200	2279	2357	2436	2514
F	2907	2985	3064	3143	3221
F1	3221	3300	3379	3457	3536
G	3614	3693	3771	3850	3929
Н	4322	4400	4479	4557	4636

Curriculum Rates

Category I \$178.35 (\$22.29/hr.) Category II \$209.82 (\$26.23/hr.)

Activities Step 1 of EA

DESCRIPTIONS OF GROUPS

Junior/Senior

Group A Prom

Drama

Group B Coach-Minor

Flag Team, Destination Imagination

VICA, DECA,

FBLA HS

Leadership

Group C Junior Concessions (N/A)

Middle School Asst. Coaches (N/A) Middle School Music Director

Group D Middle School Head 8th gr. Coaches

Drama Coach-Major (high school)

Drill Team Forensics

Group E High School Asst. Coaches

*Asst. Volleyball & Track

High School Rally Squad/Cheer

High School Choir

Annual/News

paper

Group F High School Asst. Coaches

*Asst. Football & Basketball

FFAVoAg Instructor (2 sep contracts)

Group F1 High School Head Coaches

*Head Volleyball & Track

Group G Positions formerly in this group moved to Group H

Group H High School Head Coaches

*Head Football & Basketball High School Band Instructor

*Funded: Football, Volleyball, Basketball, Track

*Funded Head Varsity: Soccer, Cheer, Wrestling, Baseball, Softball (F1)

APPENDIX C RECLASSIFICATION



OSEA Position Review Guidelines

